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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a high investment risk may be attached. In
particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record
of profitability nor any obligation to forecast future profitability.
Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature
of companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries
in which these companies operate. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of
GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the main board of the
Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid
market in the securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM
is publication on the internet website operated by the Stock
Exchange. GEM-listed companies are not generally required to
issue paid announcements in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly,
prospective investors should note that they need to have access
to the GEM website at “www.hkgem.com” in order to obtain up-to-
date information on GEM-listed issuers.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take
no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation
as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the
whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Launch Tech
Company Limited (the “Company” or “Launch”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief
the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and that there are no
other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or
this report misleading.
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With an aim to be the pioneer of the automotive aftermarket in the
PRC, Launch Tech Company Limited (the “Company” or “Launch”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) is committed to the provision

of the most superior and advanced products, technologies and

services to the automobile service and manufacturing industry as
well as car owners in the PRC and the world.

Capitalizing on its strong research and development team and
market sensitivity, and the cost competitiveness of manufacturing
in the PRC, Launch aims at being a new driving force of the world’s
automotive aftermarket.
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Liu Xin (Louis Liu) % (25 2)
Chairman ZEF £

Operating results

During the financial year of 2010, the Group recorded a turnover of
RMB661.1 million and net profit of RMB105.1 million, representing
a growth of 43.0% and 69.4% respectively compared to last year.

The operating result meets our expectation.

Business review

In 2010, the Group first embarked on a project of enhancing
production in the Shanghai plant and with a satisfactory result
achieved, we implemented such business model throughout the
Group. Under our improvement effort throughout the year, the
Group made significant progress in manufacturing technology,
management flow, manufacturing procedure and inventory
management, which allowed us to have a better cost control and
improve the product quality. The enhanced production contributed
to the sales growth of the Group’s product.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
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In 2010, the global sales of the Group’s X431 Electronic Eye
maintained its growth to reach 50,000 units. The sales of X-431
GX3 in the China market maintained a strong growth. X-431 Diagun
diagnostic computer was awarded as “Top 20 Maintenance and
Repair Tool for 2009” by the magazine MOTOR for Repair and
Maintenance and “Most Innovative Technology Award 2009” by
the magazine Auto and Driving Repair while X431 Heavy-Duty and
Creader V (ET97) scanner were rewarded as “Excellent Product
in Five Aspects” in 10 major categories of China in 2010 by “&)
&R of Shanghai and “The Best Product of the Year 2009” in
Australia.

In 2010, the Group restructured the organisation of Shanghai
plant to satisfy the increasing orders. The volume of the lifter
manufactured by the Shanghai plant reached a historical high. The
management, production and R&D systems of Shanghai plant have
turned over a new leaf, laying a solid foundation for the Group’s
promising development in the coming year.

In 2010, matching its new development plan, the Group recreated
its corporate culture, which significantly raised the spirit of our staff
and strengthened the cohesion.

In 2010, the Group achieved an impressive result in our primary
operation, automotive production plant while maintaining the
growth in another primary operation, the sales of automotive
electronic product. The Group was recognized by Yama Auto as an
outstanding supplier, which means that the Group’s products are
recognized by Chinese automobile companies.
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In 2010, the Group made use of IPD R&D system and developed
various brand new products with great success, generating good
profit for the Group. The revised model of X-431 Daigun was well
received in US, Europe and China market, which the X-4313G
launched in China market led the automotive repair into the era of
3G. As for international market, the Group successfully launched
X-631+, a more stable and accurate 4-wheel aligner with more
functions including power failure detection. In addition, X431
NCP diagnostic computer, KWB-503 tire balancer and Creader
VI scanner were launched and attracted much interest from
customers. The new products launched during the year will create
more sales opportunities for the Group in the coming year.

In 2010, as for corporate responsibility, the Group organized the
staff to support the post-disaster reconstruction in Yushu, set up
Launch Tech scholarship and hosted automotive technical training
workshops. With recognition for our social responsibility, the

Group’s image was improved.

Prospect

In 2011, the Group intends to carry out R&D and launch innovative
industry-leading products with its IPD development system. It is
expected that the launch of such new products will extend the
Group’s market share and increase profit. While developing new
product technology, the Group will maintain a strict control over the
costs of R&D, production and sales, and enhance production. It
will also adopt flexible and dynamic policies in market management
and human resources to achieve a rapid and sustaining growth in
sales.

In 2011, the Group will continue enhancing production to lay a solid
foundation for the Group’s further growth.

In 2011, the Group plans to keep creating innovative, quality,
efficient, professional and competitive corporate culture to achieve
a glorious result. Quality and efficiency was of utmost importance
for the Group’s internal management and culture establishment
in 2010. The improved product quality and services efficiency will
definitely increase the competitiveness of the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement
EERARE

In 2011, the Group will remain market-oriented and maintain the
advantages in new products R&D, efficiency and quality, cost
control and management, enhancing production and marketing
creativeness that it enjoyed in 2010. Besides maintaining the
competitiveness of its core business, the Group will make new
attempts in order to accomplish sustainable development.

As for China market, relying on about 200 distributors, the Group
will adopt our elimination system to eliminate those with worst
performance. Enhanced training and evaluation will be provided for
salesmen and distributor channels to further realise the Group’s
advantages. Meanwhile, product promotional activities will be
carried out around the country. By continual exploring major
industrial exhibitions, allocating more resource in specialized mass
media advertisement and organizing sales promotional activities,
the Group will try its best in expanding the market share in China to
achieve a greater result.

As for overseas market, the Group will remain market-
oriented and develop overseas market through cost control,
technology research and development and localized sales policy
and participation in major industrial exhibition, together with
management reform and organizational restructuring to boost
products sales volume and market share.

With the help of enhancing production and refined management,
the Group will further optimize its R&D, manufacture, management
and marketing and endeavor to keep a rapid growth rate.

Looking ahead, all fellow directors and staff of the Group will closely

cooperate and continue in making innovation, and create better
returns for our shareholders and investors.

Liu Xin (Louis Liu)
Chairman
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Market

In 2010, with refined management, we enjoyed a more reasonable
and favourable channels structure and division of labour so as to
increase our work efficiency and channels’ competitiveness. To
cope with the rapid development of the China automobile market,
the Group formulated flexible market strategy and increased its
authorized distributors in China to approximately 200. As for foreign
market, the Group adjusted the manpower of management and

salesmen to optimize the team.

In 2010, the Group consolidated the tool sales team and combined
it with subsidiaries for a faster and more efficient tool management,

market development and customer services.

In 2010, as for main business, the main business sales team
managed by the subsidiaries scaled a new high and rewarded as

the best supplier by automobile manufacturers.

In June 2010, the Group convened the fifteenth PRC annual
conference in Nanchang, Jiangxi. Participants included the
Group’s PRC distributors and main business partners. Besides, the
Group’s sales reached a historical high. In July 2010, the Group
held the annual conference for overseas distributors located in
Asian, African and Latin American regions in Shanghai. Shanghai
plant was recognized by the overseas distributors for its advanced
production and quality control. In September 2010, the Group
held annual conference for Europe distributors, through which the
Group comprehensively communicated with such distributors,
laying a solid foundation for the sales and customer service in
2010.

Business Review
ey ACI) =

—ZE-TF EEEMSERBRELERAE
T B4 %ﬂAEMEEM@E EI]

Mo TERERMGEIE BEMANRFE
R’IT  #t ¥ E;iﬁm%Z’l‘%ﬁ%ﬁ NS
BHIE T EE 2 MISRE - hERELHE

FRET200%K - SHEBINTE - RNEEH
ETEEMEEAR - BEEMNEREL -

 EEEATAZHEBEKA G
TRAE®E mERANEPR

T FEEHEBIH HORA
BEEZBHEBHERN R-_Z—ZF
BUSHE RN - BE T 1ERERIAZE
FHRER KR

ZE-ZTF AEEANANIAEEEEHAT
EEFRETAEFS  SEPRLHES
MEZAERA2MTEE  SEHEERIE
$HE o A7 A L/EE8T2010F /85N 8
Rt AT S LIS IRAEELEER

R Q177 S MG S 2 S -
RO BB TBMEHAFE - 75 AEH
BT TR AT TEZHENES

BRAFIT T &R ©

Annual Report 2010 —Z —ZF £



Business Review
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In 2010, the Group organized 18 technical training workshops
in China and participated in the 53rd Spring Auto Maintenance
Fair, the 54th Autumn Auto Maintenance Fair and Automechanika
Shanghai. As for foreign markets, the Group participated in 2010
AAPEX in US, PAACE Automechanika in Frankfurt, Germany,
Automechanika Middle East at Dubai International Convention and
Exhibition Centre and CENTRO ZARAGOZA in Spain.

Research and Development

The major research and developments of the Group in 2010 were

as follows:

In 2010, to enhance the advantage in R&D, the Group implemented
various reforms and recruited an experienced R&D team. Besides,
the Group rectified the management of R&D team to further prefect
and stabilize the IPD R&D systems. Thus, morale is high in the R&D

division.

In 2010, the Group developed numerous new products such as
X431 3G, X431NCP, Creader VI colored display scanner, X631+
4-wheel aligner, X631 NCP 4-wheel aligner and KWB-533 tire
balancer and revised the design of X431 Daiguan diagnostic
computer. The functions of X431 3G such as wireless diagnosis,
high-speed internet browsing, one click update as well as quick
performance were popular with the Chinese customers. X431 3G
is the first diagnostic product using 3G communication network for
diagnosis. As such technology is industrial-leading and innovative
with a high C/P value, it is our powerful weapon in the market

competition.

In 2010, more than 1,000 versions of X431 were launched, the
software of which underwent an in-depth development. The
Group perfected and enriched the software of X431 Heavy Duty
diagnostic computer for heavy auto. It is expected that X431 Heavy
Duty diagnostic computer for heavy auto will help extend the

Group’s market share and generate substantial profit.
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In 2010, the Group focused on the R&D on automobile electronic
products such as the diagnostic computers, motor vehicle meters,
reversing radars and tire pressure examining products and
achieved a breakthrough. Most of our products were welcomed
by automobile manufacturers and the Group was awarded as an

excellent supplier.

In 2010, the Group’s tool R&D and management team combined
with the Group’s R&D centre, which shared the management and
R&D resources, reduced development and management costs as

well as raised the development and management efficiency.

Management

In 2010, the Group applied the enhancing production and 6S
management and procedure management. Also, the Group
implemented refined management in internal management,
corporate culture establishment, human resources management,
systematical procedure management and implementation,
marketing management, general budget management, cost
management and control, quality management, efficiency
management and R&D management.

In 2010, the Group adopted various incentive measures to motivate
and inspire the staff. As for the R&D manpower and procedure
management, the Group carried out internal evaluation for award

and punishment, intensively inspiring the R&D staff.

In 2010, the Group’s ERP, CRM, 10 and OA systems completed
the consolidation and workflow efficiency started to achieve.
Moreover, the internal communication system was further

streamlined and optimized.

Business Review
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Business Review
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Prospect

In 2011, based on the enhancing production adopted in 2009, the
Group will continue to accomplish the target of being a modern and
outstanding corporation. Meanwhile, the Group will promote the
new corporate culture and make it a new competitive strength of
the Group.

In 2011, the Group intends to ride on the momentum of 2010,
enhance the technological development of core products, innovate
new products, aggressively promote the electronic high-new
technological products of automobile and expand the product lines
and business to achieve an overall increase in competitiveness of
our products and brand.

In 2011, the Group will strengthen the R&D of diagnostic core
and competitive products, consolidate the R&D team and widen
the gap between the Group and its competitors. The Group will
develop revolutionary products. In addition to optimizing existing
products, such as X431 3G and X631 NCP, the Group will develop
the new generation 3D 4-wheel aligner. As for the mechanical
products such as lifter, the Group intends to develop more
worldwide applicable products fitting different regional market

standards and intensify cost control and management.

In 2011, the Group plans to develop individual diagnostic products
and DIY products. Working with upstream and downstream
corporations, the Group will develop individual diagnostic products
and DIY products specialized for mobile phone and network
platform in order to enlarge its market share in the rapidly growing
China automobile market. It is expected that such project will bring

substantial profit to the Group.
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In 2011, the Group designs to implement refined management in
China market and continue to enhance the sales and service of
distribution partners through an elimination system to eliminate
those with worst performance in order to optimize and strictly
manage the distribution team. Also, the Group will offer much
support to the distributors such as credit limit, advertisement,
promotional materials, marketing fee, talents and management
support to deepen and enhance the cooperation with distributors
with an aim to run business bigger and stronger mutually.
Furthermore, various types of exhibitions, annual conferences,
promotional activities, technical competitions and professional
media advertisement will be organized and arranged to promote
the popularity, reputation and influence of LAUNCH.

In 2011, the Group will formulate relevant marketing policy with
reference to the economic and political features in different regions
for every overseas market. Closely working with distributors, the
Group will promote the international popularity and influence of
the brand of LAUNCH and actively follow the strategic planning
adopted by the headquarters for the purpose of boosting export
volume and improving the results of overseas market.
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Financial Review
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FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Group adopts to a prudent financial management policy
and has a healthy financial position. As at 31 December 2010,
the Group had cash and bank balances of approximately
RMB355,000,000. As at 31 December 2010, shareholders’ equity
of the Group amounted to approximately RMB654,000,000.
Current assets was approximately RMB780,000,000. The Group’s
current liabilities of approximately RMB443,000,000, comprised of
short-term bank borrowings of approximately RMB305,000,000,
and the rest were mainly account payables and accruals. The
Group’s long term borrowings were about RMB925,000. The
Group’s net asset value per share was approximately RMB10.84.
The Group’s gearing ratio, which represented the percentage of

bank borrowings over total assets, was approximately 27%.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had 734 and 27 employees
(2009: 734 and 25 respectively) based in the PRC and overseas
respectively. Staff costs, excluding directors’ and supervisors’
emoluments, were approximately RMB83 million in 2010 (2009:
approximately RMB68 million).

The Group remunerates employees by their performance and
experience. It has adopted a share option scheme whereby
employees of the Group may be granted options to acquire
shares. The Group also offers staff benefits such as professional
training programs enhance staffs’ skills, knowledge and sense of
belonging.

OTHERS

As at 31 December 2010, apart from the pledge of certain land and
buildings totalling of approximately RMB146 million and (2009: land
and buildings of approximately RMB145 million and restricted bank
deposit of approximately RMBO0.6 million), the Group had no other

significant assets pledged, so as on 31 December 2009.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Xin, also known as Louis Liu, aged 42, is an executive
Director and the chairman of the Company. Mr. Liu is the founder of
the Company and has around 10 years of experience in corporate
management, business development, product development and
marketing in the computer and automotive diagnostic and testing
industries. He is a graduate of Chengdu Technology University
(currently known as Sichuan University) with a bachelor’s degree
in applied physics. Mr. Liu is mainly responsible for the strategic
planning, overall management, establishment of strategic alliances
and development of overseas marketing and sales channel. Mr. Liu
Xin is the brother of Mr. Liu Jun and Ms. Liu Yong.

Mr. Liu Jun, also known as Charles Liu, aged 40, is an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Liu
is the co-founder of the Company and is the brother of Mr. Liu
Xin and Ms. Liu Yong. Mr. Liu has around 10 years of experience
in corporate management, business development and product
development in automotive diagnostic and testing industries. He
is a graduate of Tsinghua University with a bachelor’s degree in
radio electronics engineering. Mr. Liu once served as the head of
the Company’s R&D department and headed the development
of the first generation of Electronic Eye in November 1994, and
was honoured as one of the Shenzhen Ten Outstanding Young
Technology Experts in 1998. He is currently responsible for the
day-to-day operations of Company, and also supervises the
Company’s R&D and finance.
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2S5 EEkaEEAER

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. Liu Ping, aged 50, is an assistant chairman of the Company.
Ms. Liu is the sister of Mr. Liu Xin, Ms. Liu Yong and Mr. Liu Jun.
She is a graduate of Wuhan College of Marine Traffic Engineering
(EUZKEITEERT) with a bachelor’s degree in shipbuilding.
Before she joined the Company in 2004, Ms. Liu has been a
shipbuilding engineer of Guangzhou Wenchong Shipbuilding, a
large-scale shipyard in the PRC, and has then served as a tutor and
a principal with the title of senior professor of the technical school
of that shipyard. She is currently responsible for human resources,
property management and administration of the Company.

Non-executive Director

Ms. Liu Yong, aged 47, is a non-executive Director since June
1997, and is the sister of Mr. Liu Xin and Mr. Liu Jun. Ms. Liu
once studied in Dalian Foreign Language Institute, and served in
the sales department and public relations department of Guilin
Holidays Inn and Guilin Rong Hu Hotel, respectively, and as the
general manager of Sunshine Travel Agency. Ms. Liu has extensive
experience in corporate management, sales and marketing
and public relations management. She is currently a director of
Shenzhen De Shi Yu.

Ms. Liu Xiaohua, aged 56, obtained an Executive MBA from
the Thunderbird School of Global Management in 1999. Ms. Liu
has more than 20 years of management experience with large
multinational companies in the Asia Pacific region and is currently
the managing director of SPX Corporation (China) Co., Ltd., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of SPX.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Jiang Chao, aged 39, is currently an executive Director, the
chief financial officer, vice president of China Wireless Technologies
Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, with stock code
02369), and the qualified accountant and company secretary of
that company. He is an associated member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a certified public accountant
in the PRC. Mr. Jiang has about 17 years of experience in
accounting and finance. Prior to that, he had worked for the
State Audit Bureau. Mr. Jiang had also worked for Qiao Xing
Universal Telephone, Inc. (BEEFHBRAE], a company listed
on NASDAQ, with stock code XING) and Shenzhen Zhong Xing
Telecom Equipment Company Limited ((F3II7 & B@ A R E A IR
A\, a company listed on the Stock Exchange, with stock code
00763) where he was responsible for financial and accounting
functions. Mr. Jiang obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics
from SUN Yat-Sen University (47 11 K22) in 1991,

Mr. Liu Yuan, aged 36, is a partner of slig (It R)IREEEA
fR/A7F]. He has been the head of the Shenzhen Branch and vice
president of a main branch of the Bank of China. Mr. Liu Yuan is a
graduate of the Economic Law Department of Zhongnan University
of Economics and Law (R EBEEBUEARE) with a bachelor of

law.

Dr. Zou Shulin, aged 48, is a guest professor of the Business and
Administration Department of Zhongnan University of Economics
and Law (R A& BUEKZ ). He has been an associate
professor and professor of Zhongnan University of Economics and
Law (FPEIBAAEEUE K2R ) and a branch president of the Shenzhen
Branch of China Everbright Bank. Dr. Zou Shulin is a graduate of
Zhongnan University of Economics and Law (71 & B A4S BUA K ER).
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

2S5 EEkaEEAER

MEMBERS OF SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Supervisory committee in the PRC has similar functions as audit
committee, which mainly reviews the financial results of the
Company and the decisions made by the Board. Supervisors
can represent the interest of shareholders or employees, and
independent supervisors are recruited from outside and not related
to any of the directors, supervisors, promoters and employees
of the Company. Mr. Wang Xi Lin is appointed as a Supervisor
through the recommendation of the Company’s employees. Mr.
Sun Zhongwen and Mr. Du Xuan are appointed as independent

Supervisors.

Mr. Sun Zhongwen, aged 65, is a graduate of Changsha
Railway University (now named as Central South University) with
a bachelor’s degree. Since 1968, he has been an engineer,
chief engineer and head of operation of the Liuzhou Railway
Administration of the Ministry of Railways and the vice president
and standing committee of the party. In 1997, he was appointed as
the deputy mayor of the Guilin municipal government in Guangxi,
secretary of the work committee and director of the management
committee of the Guilin National Hi-Tech Zone. He then served as
the deputy director of the standing committee. He has retired in
2006.

Mr. Du Xuan, aged 47, is a graduate of the Computer Department
of University of Electronic Science and Technology of China
with a bachelor’s degree in senior engineering. He has been the
chairman of A I & F RN BR AR since 1998 and the
vice chairman of Shenzhen Computer Software Association (%
st EHE 7€) and vice chairman of Shenzhen Young

oo

Entrepreneurs Association GRYIT B FBEKHE) since 2001,
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

MEMBERS OF SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
(Continued)

Mr. Wang Xi Lin, aged 47, is the general manager of the
Company’s automotive diagnostic product division and a
Supervisor since March 2002. Mr. Wang graduated from the
China Mining Industry University in Beijing with a master’s degree
in engineering. Prior to joining the Company in October 2000,
Mr. Wang served as a senior engineer at several state-owned
companies and led the R&D works in relation to large electronic
control and electronic automation systems. Mr. Wang was formerly
the head of the Company’s R&D department, and had successfully
led the development of the ADC2000 auto diagnostic computer.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Huang Zhao Huan, aged 46, is the vice president and the
director of the domestic marketing centre of the Company. Ms.
Huang is a graduate of Nanchong Teaching University with a
bachelor’s degree in mathematics. She is currently responsible for
the development and management of the Company’s domestic
sales network and marketing activities and customer relationships

of its major customers. She joined the Company in 1996.

Mr. Guo Feng, aged 38, graduated from Xian Electronic
Technology University majoring in Communication Engineering. He
has been responsible for R&D and implementation of automatic
control system of large buildings. He joined Launch in 1999 and
worked his way up from engineer, division manager to general
manager now. He has successfully led the R&D and improvement

of a series of products including engine analyzer and so on.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. Jiang Shiwen, aged 38, is the vice president and the Chief
Information Officer of the Company. Mr. Jiang graduated from
Dalian University of Technology and Shanghai Jiao Tong University
with a master’s degree in mathematics and a MBA degree. Prior
to joining the Company in 2002, he had worked in several major
privately-owned and foreign enterprises as development engineer,
in charge of the R&D work relating to large scale management
system, e-commerce system and embedded system. Mr. Jiang
oversees the construction, implementation and maintenance of the
entire IT system of the Company. He has led the Company in the
successful planning, design and online operation of a number of
large IT networks including ERP, CRM and OA systems.

Mr. Zhang Wei, aged 40, is the Company’s Chief Technology
Officer. Mr. Zhang graduated from Tsinghua University and
Chinese Academy of sciences with a MS degree. Prior in joining
in the Company in 2008, he worked as a high school teacher,
chief representative in China of foreign-invested enterprise, deputy
general manager and chief technology officer of major privately-
owned enterprise, in charge of research and development projects.
Mr. Zhang is now responsible for establishing the policy and
carrying on research for the next generation products. He is an

important performer to the Company’s technology policy.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. Huang Guobin, aged 41, is the secretary of the Board
of the Company. Mr Huang graduated from the Guangzhou
Institute of Foreign Languages and the Zhongnan University of
Finance and Economics with a bachelor’s degree in foreign trade
and postgraduate qualifications in investment. He worked as a
marketing manager for southern China in Shenzhen Neptunus
Group, the department head of the settlement department in
the international division of China Investment Bank, a credit
management manager in the Shenzhen branch of China Everbright
Bank and a manager in the approval department in the head office
of China Everbright Bank. Mr. Huang is familiar with the relevant
requirements in domestic and overseas capital markets, and has
extensive experiences in project investment and risk management.
Mr. Huang Guobin has been serving as the secretary of the Board

since joining the Company in January 2011.

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT AND COMPANY
SECRETARY

Mr. Liu Chun Ming, aged 35, is the financial controller and
company secretary of the Company. Mr. Liu is a qualified
accountant and obtained a bachelor’s degree (Honours) in
accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong in 1997.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, and, prior to joining the Company in March 2002, has
worked in an international audit firm for few years.

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Liu Jun, executive Director, compliance officer and authorised
representative. Mr. Liu will be advising on and assisting the Board
in implementing procedures to ensure that the Company complies
with the GEM Listing Rules and other relevant laws and regulations
applicable to the Company and responding efficiently to all inquiries
directed to the Company by the Stock Exchange.
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Corporate Governance Report
EEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Group commits to maintaining and ensuring a high level of
corporate governance standards and continuously reviews and
improves our corporate governance and internal controls practices.
Set out below are the principles of corporate governance as
adopted by the Company during the reporting year.

DISTINCTIVE ROLE OF CHAIRMAN AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for leading the Board
of Directors in establishing and monitoring the implementation of
strategies and plans to create values for shareholders.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for managing the
operation of the Group’s businesses, proposing strategies to
the Board and the effective implementation of the strategies and
policies adopted by the Board.

THE BOARD

As of 31 December 2010, there were eight members on the
Board, which are the Chairman, two other Executive Directors, two
Non-Executive Directors (“NEDs”) and three Independent Non-
Executive Directors (“INEDs”).

The INEDs are considered by the Board to be independent of the
management and free of any relationship that could materially
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgments. The
Board considered that each of the INEDs brings his own relevant
expertise to the Board and its deliberations.

None of the INEDs has any business or financial interests with the
Group nor has any relationship with other directors and confirmed
their independences to the Group pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report

THE BOARD (Continued)

The Board met regularly during the year and on ad hoc basis as
required by business needs. The Board’s primary purpose is to set
and review the overall strategic development of the Group and to
oversee the achievement of the plans to enhance shareholders’
value. Daily operational decisions are delegated to the Executive
Directors. The Board met 12 times during the year and the
Directors’ attendance is shown in the table on page 23. The
NED and INEDs may take independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense in carrying out their functions. The Board has
arranged for appropriate insurance coverage for the Directors

The Company appointed each of the Non-Executive directors
during the Annual General Meeting or by the Board for new
appointment during the year. The term of each of these
appointments shall be expired up to the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting and can offer for re-election in the Annual General
Meeting.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established by the Company on 21
March 2002, with written terms of reference in compliance with
the requirements as set out in Rules 5.23 to 5.25 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The principal duties of the committee are the review
and supervision of the Company’s reporting process and internal
control. The Group’s audit committee has held five meeting since
early 2010. The members of the audit committee are as follows:

Name Position in the audit committee
#E EREESRMA
Mr. Jiang Chao chairman

BB AE FE
(appointed on 18 March 2010)
(RZZE—Z=F=A+NAEZMT)

Mr. Liu Yuan member
BiRSEAE K8
(appointed on 18 March 2010)
(R=Z2—ZF=A+N\HEZT)

Dr. Zou Shulin member
BririE L 4=

(appointed on 18 March 2010)
(R=Z—=F A+ \HEEZT)
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ESERY

independent non-executive Director
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independent non-executive Director
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independent non-executive Director
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The audit committee comprises the three INEDs, Mr. Jiang Chao,
Mr. Liu Yuan and Dr. Zou Shuliu with Mr. Jiang Chao serving as the
chairman of the audit committee. Each member brings to the audit
committee his valuable experience in reviewing financial statements
and evaluating significant control and financial issues of the Group.
Mr. Jiang is @ member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants.
Mr. Jiang has many years of experience in auditing, accounting,
taxation, business consulting and financial management. He
possesses the appropriate professional qualification on accounting
or related financial management expertise as required under Rule
5.05 (2) of the GEM Listing Rules. Member’s attendance at the 5
meetings held during the year is set out in the table on page 23.

The audit committee is required to assist the Board to fulfill its
responsibilities related to external financial reporting, associated
announcements and system of internal control. During the year,
the audit committee reviewed the quarterly and annual reports.
Additional meetings may also be held by the audit committee from
time to time to discuss special projects or other issues that the
audit committee considered necessary.

The audit committee is also responsible for the development,
implementation and monitoring of the Groups’ policy on external
audit. The audit committee recommended the appointment and
reappointment of the Group’s external auditors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (“Code”). The primary duties of the
remuneration committee are, amongst other things, to review and
determine the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other
compensation payable to our Directors and senior management
and to make recommendation to our Board on our Group’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of our Directors and
senior management. The remuneration committee comprises one
executive Director, namely, Mr. Liu Jun and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Dr Zou Shulin and Mr. Liu Yuan. Mr.
Liu Yuan has been appointed as the chairman of the remuneration
committee. A meeting was held by the remuneration committee
with all members attended during the year ended 31 December
2010.
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TEERRE
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZE®
The Company established a nomination committee with written ARBEKIIRHEES  EEmMBEERE
terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The principal IR ASTAMRT - IREEEEeNTERE S

duties of the nomination committee are to identify and nominate HAGIEREANEETFESHB I RES
suitable candidates for the appointment of the Directors and make METTEINESCREEESR - HFHE
recommendations to the Board on succession planning for the BEem— BN ITEERFAENMBIE L IE
Directors. The nomination committee comprises one executive MITESESPAME T RREREE4EK o Bt
Director, namely, Mr. Liu Xin and two independent non-executive MNELTEEEZFARZEESTIRF - HECZ
Directors, namely Dr Zou Shulin and Mr. Liu Yuan. Dr Zou Shulin T-ZTFE+_A=1T—"HILtFE  EEELE
has been appointed as the chairman of the nomination committee. SORTREH AFEKEHELEES
A meeting was held by the nomination committee with all members B

attended during the year ended 31 December 2010.

MEETINGS ATTENDANCE SRHFERLE
Board Audit Committee
BExg EREEE
Number of Meetings SEAH 12 5
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Liu Xin &l bt 12 N/A
TEA
Mr. Liu Jun 215 %4% 12 N/A
TEA
Non-executive director FHITES
Ms. Liu Yong )=t 11 N/A
N3
Ms. Liu Xiahua Bzt 0 N/A
N3
Independent non-executive directors BN IFHTES
Mr. Jiang Chao PE i tes 5 5
Mr. Liu Yuan Elpag e
Dr. Zou Shulin BME L
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Corporate Governance Report
EEERRE

CONFIRMATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH
MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
The Directors have confirmed, following specific inquiry by the
Company that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code during the year under review.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The audit committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-
audit functions performed by the external independent auditor,
including whether such non-audit functions could lead to any
potential material adverse effect on the Company. During the
year under review, the Group is required to pay an aggregate of
approximately RMB2,000,000 to the external auditors for their

services including audit and non-audit services.

DIRECTORS’ AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors’ responsibilities for the accounts and the
responsibilities of the external independent auditor to the
shareholders are set out on pages 37 and 38.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance
standards on a timely basis and the Board endeavors to take the
necessary actions to ensure the compliance with the provisions of
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices introduced by the
Stock Exchange.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is engaged in the provision of products and services
serving the automotive aftermarket and the automobile industry in
the PRC and certain overseas countries. The principal activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the results of the Group and appropriations of the
Company for the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and consolidated statement of changes in
equity respectively and the accompanying note 33 to the financial
statements.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group and the Company during the year are set out in note 13
to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The directors and supervisors of the Company during the year and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Liu Xin (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Jun (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Liu Ping

Non-executive director:
Ms. Liu Yong
Ms. Liu Xiahua

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Jiang Chao

Mr. Liu Yuan

Dr. Zou Shulin

Supervisors:

Mr. Wang Xi Lin
Mr. Sun Zhongwen
Mr. Du Xuan

All Directors and Supervisors have entered into service contracts
with the Company, for a term of three years.

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association, the term of office of the Directors shall be three years
commencing from the date of appointment or re-election and
renewable upon re-appointment or re-election. In accordance with
the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association and the
PRC Company Law, the term of office of supervisors shall also be
three years and renewable upon re-appointment or re-election.

None of the Directors or Supervisors has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

(a)

Name of Director were held domestic shares
EENS ¥R 545 REREE
Domestic Shares
Mr. Liu Xin ) Beneficiary owner 132,000,000
2F A OEZEAA
@ Interest in controlled company 138,864,000

Interests and short positions of Directors, Chief
Executives and Supervisors of the Company in the share
capital of the Company and its associated corporations

As at 31 December 2010, the Directors, Chief Executives
and Supervisors of the Company had the following interests
and short positions in the shares, debentures or underlying
shares of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQO”)) which have been notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or which have been required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein or
which have been required, pursuant to Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by
the Directors, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

Long positions in Shares

Capacity in
which shares

LSS EYNIL

Directors’ Report
EEEHREE

EX  EERIETHRAERE

(@)

Number of

RRFES  TBRITRABRESRAE
RNEREBBEE 2 RA T 2 m R K

B

R-Z—ZTF+-F=+—H ' AQF
BEE FETBRAEBRESEAAEARF
S EHAEEE (TR R ESRAEED
(IFBHFRHEEN ) EXVE) 2 K&
BHABMAR D P FEFE T 5 e Kok
2 BERBEZHLAIEEFIEXVED
F7RBDBEMNERNAT REZEH(E
FEIREE 5 LB G A B EER R
LEEHESFHECERRAR) X
A ARIEE FH K EAE (510 25 352 &M
FEZETMASRIRA SR LR A
ELABEESTHREAEFETELR
52 RTEBME AN LB APz s
KOKRBWT -

R FRE
Approximate Approximate
percentage of percentage of

the Company’s  the Company’s

issued total issued
domestic shares shares
HARAT HEARE
ERITRER BITROAH
BHAED BHRE
40.00% 21.87%
42.08% 23.01%

(Note 1)

(MHE1)
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Directors’ Report
EEEHREE

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

(Continued)

Long positions in Shares (Continued)

Domestic Shares (Continued)

Name of Director

MR

Mr. Liu Jun

Elvap s

Ms. Liu Yong

Bmat

Name of Director

BEEnA

H Shares

Mr. Jiang Chao
Ry

Capacity in
which shares
were held

BRE1D

®Interest in controlled company

ORI R AR

Interest in controlled company

ISR YNl £

@ Interest in controlled company

ORI R EER

Capacity in
which shares

were held

BR&H

Beneficiary owner

ExBEBAA

a Launch Tech Company Limited JEYITTAF R B R A7)

Number of
domestic shares
RERER

10,261,000

138,864,000

10,261,000

Number of
H shares

HREE

3,920,000

R oir A (&)

AERK (&)

Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
issued
domestic shares
o N
ERTARER
BRED T
3.11%

(Note 2)

(PHEE2)
42.08%

(Note 3)

(PH5E3)

3.11%
(Note 4)
(BizE4)

Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
issued

H shares

o N
ERTHR
BRED

H

1.43%

EE EERIETHAERE
ZHRER (&)

Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
total issued
shares
EERARE
BITROBE
BAED

1.70%

23.01%

1.70%

Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
total issued
shares
EAEREE
BITRD B
BRED

0.65%



DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
(Continued)

Long positions in Shares (Continued)

Notes:

(1) Mr. Liu Xin holds 60.00% interest in &Y 1R #7525 A IR A 7] (“Shenzhen
Langqu”) which holds approximately 42.08% interest in the issued domestic
shares of the Company. The corporate interest of Mr. Liu Xin in the Company
duplicates with that held by Mr. Liu Jun in the Company. By virtue of Mr. Liu
Xin’s holding more than one-third interest in Shenzhen Langqu, Mr. Liu Xin is
deemed, under Part XV of the SFO, to be interested in approximately 42.08%
interest in the issued domestic shares of the Company apart from his personal
interest of 40.00% interest in the issued domestic shares of the Company.

©) Mr. Liu Xin holds 40.00% interest in &3 T {58151 & B BR 2 7 (“Shenzhen
De Shi Yu”) which holds 3.11% interest in the issued domestic shares of the
Company. By virtue of Mr. Liu Xin’s holding more than one-third interest in
Shenzhen De Shi Yu, Mr. Liu Xin is deemed, under the Part XV of the SFO, to
be interested in 3.11% interest in the issued domestic shares of the Company

apart from his personal interest of 40.00% interest in the issued domestic

shares of the Company.

Q) Mr. Liu Jun holds 40.00% interest in Shenzhen Langqu which holds
approximately 42.08% interest in the issued domestic shares of the Company.
The corporate interest of Mr. Liu Jun in the Company duplicates with that held
by Mr. Liu Xin in the Company. By virtue of Mr. Liu Jun’s holding more than
one-third interest in Shenzhen Langqu which holds approximately 42.08%
interest in the issued domestic shares of the Company, Mr. Liu Jun is deemed,
under Part XV of the SFO, to be interested in approximately 42.08% interest in

the issued domestic shares of the Company.

(4) Ms. Liu Yong holds 60.00% interest in Shenzhen De Shi Yu which holds 3.11%
interest in the issued domestic shares of the Company. By virtue of Liu Yong’s
holding more than one-third interest in Shenzhen De Shi Yu, Ms. Liu Yong is
deemed, under Part XV of the SFO, to be interested in 3.11% interest in the

issued domestic shares of the Company.

Save

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, none of the

Directors, Chief executives or Supervisors of the Company had any

personal, family, corporate or other interests or short positions in

any shares, debentures or underlying shares of the Company or

any of its associated corporations as defined in the SFO.
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Directors’ Report
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
(Continued)

(b)

Persons who have an interest or short position which is
discloseable under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the

SFO and substantial shareholders

So far as known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2010,
the following persons (not being a Director or supervisor of
the Company) had an interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or be directly or indirectly
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at

general meetings of any other member of the Group:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares in the

Company

(i) Domestic Shares

EE EERIETHAERE
ZHRER (&)

(b) BEERBIFSZRBEMEMEXVEE2R
BDMATHERDZIAXARBZALTRE
BERR

RZEBE-—TF+-_A=+—H &
ERE - AT AT (GEARRRIESRE
FERRIN) AR BRI 9 2kB BERR (0  FF
BREBESFLHABEBRIEXVEE2 R
3D G BRI NG«
KE - SKEEEERI A D RERE
SRR S BEAE A B A RIRER K
g ERE N 2 EERIR AP S
10% 2k bA_E v s

RAEXTRDREBERD 2HFR

O AEK
Approximate Approximate
percentage of percentage of

the Company’s the Company’s

issued total issued
Capacity in domestic shares shares
which shares Number of LA AF] EARATE
Name were held domestic shares ERITRER BT
£ BREH5 AEREE BHAEIL BABES
Shenzhen Langqu Interest in controlled company 138,864,000 42.08% 23.01%
(Note 1)
IR AR RN AR (fF3E1)
Note: iz :

The legal and beneficial interests in the shares of Shenzhen Langqu are owned
by Mr. Liu Xin as to 60% and by Mr. Liu Jun as to 40% respectively. Mr. Liu Xin
and Mr. Liu Jun are therefore deemed to be interested in all Domestic Shares
registered in the name of Shenzhen Langqu under Part XV of the SFO.

a Launch Tech Company Limited JEYITTAF R B R A7)
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF E= - EERFETHABRNE
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES 5y (48)
(Continued)

(b) Persons who have an interest or short position which igb) EBRIEE SR EEKMIEXVIIE2R
INWETRBEZIRBZALRE
ZRER (&)

discloseable under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the

SFO and substantial shareholders (Continued)

(i) H Shares

Name

=

Templeton Asset
Management Ltd.

SPX Corporation

Capacity in
which shares
were held

FRE 5

Investment manager
REKIE

Beneficial owner

EnlEAA

i) HE
Approximate
Approximate percentage
percentage of the
of the Company’s
Company’s total
Interests in issued issued shares
H shares H shares HARATH
long position HARAT I RT
RHRFE EETHR RO
ZHEm BB Aot
45,600,000 16.67% 7.55%
24,635,000 9.00% 4.08%
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Directors’ Report
EEEWmEE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2010.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers was approximately 23% of the Group’s
total turnover and the Group’s largest customer accounted for

approximately 9% of the Group’s turnover.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the
Group'’s five largest suppliers was approximately 22% of the
Group’s total purchases and the Group’s largest supplier
accounted for approximately 6% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, or Supervisors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors and supervisors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any interest in any of the five largest
customers or suppliers of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the PRC, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

BOARD PRACTICES AND PROCEDURES

The Company has complied with the board practices and
procedures as set out in Rules 5.34 to 5.45 of the GEM Listing
Rules during this year.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (“Code”). The primary duties of the
remuneration committee are, amongst other things, to review and
determine the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other
compensation payable to our Directors and senior management
and to make recommendation to our Board on our Group’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of our Directors and
senior management. The remuneration committee comprises one
executive Director, namely, Mr. Liu Jun and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Dr Zou Shulin and Mr. Liu Yuan. Mr.
Liu Yuan has been appointed as the chairman of the remuneration
committee. A meeting was held by the remuneration committee
with all members attended during the year ended 31 December
2010.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHREE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The principal
duties of the nomination committee are to identify and nominate
suitable candidates for the appointment of the Directors and make
recommendations to the Board on succession planning for the
Directors. The nomination committee comprises one executive
Director, namely, Mr. Liu Xin and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Dr Zou Shulin and Mr. Liu Yuan.Dr Zou Shulin
has been appointed as the chairman of the nomination committee.
A meeting was held by the nomination committee with all members
attended during the year ended 31 December 2010.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An audit committee was established on 21 March 2002 with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the audit committee are
to review and supervise the financial reporting process and internal
control system of the Group. The audit committee comprises the
three independent non-executive directors, Mr. Jiang Chao, Mr. Liu
Yuan and Mr. Cou Shulin.

Five audit committee meetings were held in 2010 and up to the
date of this announcement to perform the following duties:

- review the 2009 and 2010 annual reports and first to third
quarterly reports of 2010 of the Company; and

- review and supervise the internal control system of the
Group.
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SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules. The Company has also made specific
enquiry to all Directors and the Company is not aware of any non-
compliance with the required standard of dealings and the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors adopted by
the Company throughout the year.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or the management shareholders of the
Company or their respective associates (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) had an interest in a business which causes or may
cause significant competition with the business of the Group.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of
the Company to re-appoint Messrs. BDO Limited as independent
auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board
Launch Tech Company Limited
Liu Xin

Chairman

Shenzhen, the PRC
2 March 2011
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Supervisory Committee’s Report
EEEmEE

To: All Shareholders

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Supervisory
Committee of Launch Tech Company Limited has compiled with
the Company Law of the PRC and requirements of the relevant
laws and regulations of Hong Kong and the Articles of Association
of the Company, exercised conscientiously its authority,
safeguarded the interests of the shareholders and the Company,
followed the principle of honesty and trustworthiness and worked
cautiously and diligently.

During the year, we provided reasonable suggestions and advice
on the operations and development plans to the Board and strictly
and effectively monitored whether the policies and decisions made
had conformed with the state laws and regulations and the Articles
of Association of the Company or safeguarded the interests of the
shareholders.

After investigation, we consider that the financial statements of the
Company, audited by BDO Limited, truly and sufficiently reflect the
operating results and asset positions of the Company. We also
reviewed the Report of the Directors and the profit distribution
proposal. We consider that the above report and proposal meet
the requirements of the relevant regulations and associations of the
Company. We have attended the meeting of the Board of Directors.
We consider that the members of the Board of Directors, the chief
executive and other officers have strictly compiled with the principle
of honesty and trustworthiness, worked diligently and sincerely
acted in the best interests of the Company. Up to now, none of
the Directors, chief executive and other officers have abused their
powers, caused damages to the interests of the Company and
infringed upon the interests of the Company and its staff, nor have
they violated any laws, regulations or the Company’s Articles of
Association.

We are satisfied with the various tasks achieved in the year 2009 as
well as the cost-effectiveness gained, and are confident about the
prospects of future development of the Company.

On behalf of the Supervisory Committee
Sun Zhongwen
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

Shenzhen, the PRC
2 March 2011
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Independent Auditor’s Report

IBDO

To the shareholders of Launch Tech Company Limited

(A joint stock company with limited liability established in the
People’s Republic of China)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Launch
Tech Company Limited FEYTHTAERHER B B R A Fland its
subsidiaries (together "the Group") set out on pages 40 to 139,
which comprise the consolidated and company statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2010, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZHAHES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards

or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are

free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

a Launch Tech Company Limited 7Y T AERHE AR (D B R A T
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2010 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

CHIU Wing Cheung Ringo

Practising Certificate No. P04434

25th Floor, Wing On Centre,

111 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 2 March 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meEEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2010 & Z= —

TEt-A=t+—AILEE

2010 2009
—T—FTF —ZTTNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
s ARETT AR®ETT
Revenue L6 5 661,114 462,440
Cost of sales SHE RN (383,442) (257,149)
Gross profit EF 277,672 205,291
Other income E U 5 37,742 36,335
Selling expenses HERX (66,061) (59,305)
Administrative expenses THER (64,499 (58,449)
Research and development expenses iz & (27,744) (20,297)
Other operating expenses HheE M (17,619 (15,784)
Finance costs BFTE R AR (16,883) (20,054)
Share of losses of an associate FE{h—EEt & A R ES1E 18 (5,208) (5,333)
Profit before income tax BR A48 Bt Az R 6 117,400 67,404
Income tax expense FriS iz i 9 (12,308) (5,353)
Profit for the year IR B E A 10 105,092 62,051
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 E W=
Exchange gain on translation of BEBINEEI B IRE 2
financial statements of foreign operations Rl 332 188
Other comprehensive income for the year, FREMEEKES
net of tax Bi® 332 188
Total comprehensive income attributable AATEE AEMN
to owners of the Company EHINZBEE 105,424 62,239
RMB RMB
ARE AR
(Restated)
(A5 &E25l)
Earnings per share for profit attributable RARBREEREE AEMN
to owners of the Company iy | P ST |
- Basic — &K 12 AR¥1.747t AR®1.037T

° Launch Tech Company Limited JEYITTAF R B R A7)



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR R

As at 31 December 2010 R-Z—ZF+-A=+—H

2010 2009 2008
—E-TF ZTTHE ZTTN\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FisE ARBTT ARETT ARETT
(Restated)  (Restated)
(Fg=y))  (KEED))
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y ER N B 13 258,795 252,705 233,467
Leasehold land and land use rights ME 30 ] 30 A 14 20,875 21,401 21,927
Goodwil BE 15 2,161 2,161 2,161
Development costs BB 16 53,677 51,522 47,008
Interests in an associate RS A R 2 s 18 1,978 7,186 9,759
Club membership BEE 19 1,177 1,177 1,177
Deferred tax asset RETIRE E 31 11 = =
338,674 336,152 315,499
Current assets REEE
Inventories 7R 20 96,171 84,600 76,650
Trade receivables N E Z IR 21 225,370 240,605 238,734
Bills receivables e 22 17,371 9,600 1,433
Other receivables, deposits Hibfez0a ~ e
and prepayments N Faft 08 23 75,439 122,032 164,616
Financial asset at fair value RATER AER
through profit or loss 2 BREE 24 10,000 = =
Amount due from an associate — I EE DRI 26 108 374 3,159
Pledged/Restricted bank deposits BER/BREZ
RITHFER 27 - 675 21,000
Cash and cash equivalents Be KB EEY 28 355,263 242,348 97,583
779,722 700,234 603,175
Current liabilities nREaE
Trade payables eS8 Z R 29 106,028 88,877 60,763
Bills payables ERER - - 21,000
Other payables and accrued charges HiE B R EER 30,050 19,789 12,662
Income tax payables P FT{S IR 1,836 16 12
Bank borrowings RITEE 30 305,393 360,590 278,865
443,307 469,272 373,302
Net current assets RENEEFE 336,415 230,962 229,873
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

As at 31 December 2010 R-Z—ZF+-A=+—H

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Bank borrowings
Deferred income

Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to the
Company’s owners

Share capital

Reserves

Proposed final dividend

Total equity

Mr. Liu Xin
B rE

Director

EF

REERABRE

FRBEME
|ITEE 30
LT N

EEFE

g
RAREEA

PEfLRERS
L& 32
i 33(a)
2 E RS 11

RRAE

Mr. Liu Jun
23554

Director

EF

e Launch Tech Company Limited JEYITTAF R B R A7)

2010 2009 2008
“T-2E CRTAF CBTAR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT
(Restated) (Restated)

(&%) (&E7l)

675,089 567,114 545,372
925 266 40,763

20,000 - -
20,925 266 40,763
654,164 566,848 504,609
60,360 60,360 60,360
593,804 488,380 432,177

- 18,108 12,072

654,164 566,848 504,609




ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Leasehold land and land use rights
Development costs

Investments in subsidiaries
Interests in an associate

Club membership

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Bills receivables

Other receivables, deposits
and prepayments

Financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss

Amount due from a subsidiary

Amount due from an associate

Pledged/Restricted bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade payables

Other payables and accrued charges
Amounts due to subsidiaries

Bank borrowings

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liability
Deferred income

Net assets

EQUITY

Share capital

Reserves

Proposed final dividend

Total equity

Mr. Liu Xin
BFTEE

Director

EF

Statement of Financial Position

BAEEAR R 3R

As at 31 December 2010 R-Z—ZF+-A=+—H

BERARE

FRBEE

E IR E
& £ 3t [}z + b b FA
PRI
RIB AR ZRE
iINaIl NI s £

@ FfeiE
= = T8

REBEE

A
U E 5 8RR
eSS

H A fEM IR
wEe RIAMNFR
BAHERFARRLZ
TREE
ERIESPNCIVAE S

— PRI R BRI
BERBRSIZ
RITER

Re R eEHED

REAE

FEITE BRI

H A FE 508 & e 5T &
RHSB R BIFRIA
RITEE

REBEEFE
REERRBAE
FRBEE
BN
BEEFE

R

EEEN

]

et 3 Gl
A

Mr. Liu Jun
23954

Director

EF

Notes

F=E

13
14
16
17
18
19

20
21
22
23
24
25
26

27
28

29

25
30

32

33(0)

11

2010 2009
—ET—TF —EEAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARETT
212,074 208,834
9,309 9,565
28,755 12,776
96,853 96,853
11,495 19,110
1,177 1,177
359,663 348,315
72,623 69,320
208,241 220,389
16,316 9,600
103,714 154,275
10,000 -
32,085 20,000
87 353

- 675
349,981 235,662
793,047 710,274
35,626 52,078
19,932 14,706
319,510 248,446
305,000 330,000
630,068 645,230
112,979 65,044
472,642 413,359
20,000 -
452,642 413,359
60,360 60,360
392,282 334,891
— 18,108
452,642 413,359
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZT—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Interest expenses
Interest income
Amortisation of development costs
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Annual charges on leasehold land
and land use rights
LLoss on disposals of property,
plant and equipment
Provision for impairment on trade receivables
Provision for impairment on other receivables
Share of results of an associate

Operating profit before working capital changes
Increase in inventories
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables
Increase in bills receivables
Decrease in other receivables,

deposits and prepayments
Decrease in amount due from an associate
Increase in trade payables
Decrease in bills payables
Increase in other payables and accrued charges

Cash generated from operations
Interest paid
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

e Launch Tech Company Limited SZ=YIH TAERHEAR D B R A 7

Notes
B aE

REERELCRBRS
BT B RE A
KR
MEX
FEMA
B AR 2 B 55 16
L E NN
ZITE 13
FETH R+
EREFE 14
HEDZE - BE R
=t B 1R
FEWE ZERFORERE 21
Hib W RIERERE 23
FEME—FEEE R REE 18

LEECEER KL T
TFEIE I

FEWE SRR, (38 0)
eSS

H AR YIR ~ Be RIAR
RIR

B2 R AR BB A
FEfTE S BRBIE N
FETRIBR A

At FEA A S

e E FIE N

REXBELTRS
ERFE
ENPEH

REXBELRLFR

2010 2009
—T-TF —TEAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIT ARETT
117,400 67,404
16,546 19,039
(1,132) (1,518)
13,588 12,124
31,147 26,085
526 526

36 213

2,088 2,686
151 5,904
5,208 5,333
186,458 137,796
(11,571) (7,950)
12,247 (4,557)
(7,771) (8,167)
46,442 36,680
266 2,785
17,151 28,114

- (21,000)

10,261 7,127
253,483 170,828
(16,546) (19,039)
(10,499) (5,349)
226,438 146,440




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEHESRER

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE-ZZT—ZTF+-_A=1+—HILFE

2010 2009
% —ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®ETT
Cash flows from investing activities RETBHEEZREBES
Further investment in an associate R—EE A a2 E—TRE - (2,760)
Receipt of government grants FiUSER 2 B A 7 B 20,000 —
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWMZE - BB R&E (38,091) (45,944)
Expenditure on development activities A EEFRT (15,743) (16,638)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE - BE REE
plant and equipment Frf§ 3k 770 444
Purchases of financial asset at fair BEERATER ABm
value through profit or loss L ERVEE (10,000) =
Interest received B U F B 1,132 1,518
Net cash used in investing activities KB EBFTRAR S )55 (41,932 (63,380)
Cash flows from financing activities RETBELEZRBRS
Decrease in pledged bank deposits B Z RITF R A 675 20,325
Drawdown of bank loans TREURTTE R 556,077 754,418
Repayments of bank loans ERBITER (610,518) (713,190)
Dividend paid BEfRE (18,108) -
Net cash (used in)/generated mEES (TR EL
from financing activities IR & (71,874) 61,553
Net increase in cash and ReRRSEEYIEM
cash equivalents HEE 112,632 144,613
Cash and cash equivalents R—BA—BZzEER
at 1 January REZEY 242,348 97,583
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, INEFEEFFE 2 IRE
on cash held -7 283 152
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December, R+=-—A=+—HBzZBHEK
comprising cash at banks and in hand REZEEY  sTERTER
kA& 355,263 242,348
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
e HHmRK

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZT—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

ALRREARLRS
e Bav
e D RHRE
B&  REEE*  Statutory* Public:  BERE*  RBEN*  Proposed  BREE
Share Share* surplus welfare  Translation*  Retained* final Total
capital  premium reserve fund reserve profits dividend equity
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RBM000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETn  AREfn  ARETT  ARETR  ARETT  ARBTn  AREfR
(Note 33) (Note 33) (Note 33) (Note 33)
(Wkas)  (WEss)  (W3E®D) (Rita3)
At1 January 2009, R-EENE-A-A
as previously reported e 60,360 284,210 19,380 19,380 (1,119 111,823 12,012 506,106
Pror year adustment (note 2.1)  BEEEIE(KE2.1) - - - - - (1,497) - (1.497)
At January 2009, asrestated TN E—A-A(WEF) 60360 284210 19,380 19,380 (119 1103 12012 504609
Proft for the year FEEER - - - - - 62,051 - 62,051
Other comprehensive income. £ 2
Bxchangeganontranslation B850 £
of financial statements of Iy e oA
forelgn operations e - - - - 188 - - 188
Total comprehensive ER2E
income for the year Wt - - - - 188 62,051 - 62,239
Disapproval of 2008 proposed.~~ KEMEZ “5E/\EEZ
fnel dhicend Vit - - - - - om0 -
009 proposed fraldvidend ~~ —EFNERZZRERE - - - - - (18,108) 18,108 -
At 31 December 2009 RBRNETZA=T-H
and 1 January 2010 k=5-%%-5-H 60,360 284210 19,380 19,380 (91) 166,341 18,108 566,348
2009 fnal dhidend paid BRZEZnERERS - - - - - - (18,108) (18,108)
Transactions with owners BFEAIRS - - - - - - (18,108) (18.108)
Proft for the year FEEER - - - - - 105092 - 105092
Other comprehensive income.~~~ £ 2 EE
Bxchange gainonrenslation~~ B85 £
of financial statements of 5 e oA
foreign operations Eila - - - - 3% - - 3%
Total comprehensive ER2E
income for the year WnaE - - - - 3% 105,092 - 105,424
At 31 December 2010 RZE-FE+A=1-A 60,360 284,210 19,380 19,380 (599) 271,433 - 654,164

hERERFOERGEMBRARANZHEEA
R #5093,804,000 T (=TT NF : (KFF|) AR
# 488,380,000 7T) ©

These reserve accounts comprise the reserves of RMB593,804,000 (2009:
(restated) RMB488,380,000) in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE IR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE-ZZT—ZTF+-_A=1+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Launch Tech Company Limited (the “Company”) was
established in Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) as a joint stock limited company and its overseas
listed foreign invested shares (“H Shares”) are listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since October 2002. The address of the Company’s
registered office is 2-8 Floors, Xin Yan Building, Bagua
Number Four Road, Futian District, Shenzhen, the PRC and
its principal place of business is Launch Industrial Park, North
of Wuhe Road, Banxuegang, Longgang District, Shenzhen,
the PRC.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are the provision of products and services
serving the automotive aftermarket and the automobile
industry in the PRC and certain overseas countries.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2010 were approved for issue by the board of directors on 2
March 2011.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation
The financial statements on pages 40 to 139 have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). The financial statements also include the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Growth Enterprise Market
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“GEM Listing Rules”).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZT—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Prior year adjustment

The amounts of goodwill at 1 January 2009 and
31 December 2009 were overstated as the Group
had wrongly calculated the goodwill arising from a
subsidiary in prior year. The net effect is to decrease
the carrying amount of goodwill as at 1 January 2009
and 31 December 2009 by RMB1,497,000. There is
no effect on the profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2009.

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated. The adoption of new or amended
of HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s financial

statements, if any, are disclosed in note 3.

The financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for financial assets
held for trading, which are measured at fair values.
The measurement bases are fully described in the

accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based
on management’s best knowledge and judgement
of current events and actions, actual results may
ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in
note 4.

° Launch Tech Company Limited JEYITTAF R B R A7)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE-ZZT—ZTF+-_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2. TEETBEREE (&)

2.2 Basis of consolidation 22 HFERECEE

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Group. Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies
together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the
effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective
dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line
with those used by other members of the Group.

Business combination from 1 January 2010

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured
at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains
or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group
may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis,
to measure the non-controlling interest either at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZT—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

2.3

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Business combination prior to 1 January 2010

On acquisition, the assets and liabilities of the relevant
subsidiaries are measured at their fair values at the date
of acquisition. The interest of minority shareholders is
stated at the minority’s proportion of the fair values of
the assets and liabilities recognised.

Transaction costs, other than those associated with
the issue of debt or equity securities, that the Group
incurred in connected with business combinations
were capitalised as part of the cost of the acquisition.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to control
the financial and operating policies so as to obtain
benefits from their activities. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether

the Group controls another entity.

In consolidated financial statements, acquisition of
subsidiaries (other than those under common control)
is accounted for by applying the acquisition method.
This involves the estimation of fair value of all identifiable
assets and liabilities, including contingent liabilities
of the subsidiary, at the acquisition date, regardless
of whether or not they were recorded in the financial
statements of the subsidiary prior to acquisition.
On initial recognition, the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary are included in the consolidated statement
of financial position at their fair value, which are also
used as the bases for subsequent measurement in

accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE IR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE-ZZT—ZTF+-_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

2.4

Subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
loss unless the subsidiary is held for sale or included
in a disposal group. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable at the reporting date.
All dividends whether received out of the investee’s
pre or post-acquisition profits are recognised in the

Company’s profit or loss.

Associates

Associates are those entities over which the Group
is able to exert significant influence, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of voting rights but which are neither subsidiaries

nor investment in a joint venture.

In consolidated financial statements, investments
in associates are initially recognised at cost and
subsequently accounted for using the equity method.
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised
as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the
carrying amount of the investment and is assessed
for impairment as part of the investment. The cost
of acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given,
liabilities incurred or assumed and equity instruments
issued by the Group, plus any costs directly attributable
to the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss in the determination of the Group’s share of
the associate in the period in which the investment is

acquired.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE AR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2010 EHZE—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

—EEF A=t HILEFE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Associates (Continued)

Under the equity method, the Group’s interests in
the associate is carried at cost and adjusted for the
post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the
associate’s net assets less any identified impairment
loss, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in
a disposal group that is classified as held for sale). The
profit or loss includes the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the associate for the
year, including any impairment loss on goodwill relating
to the investment in associate recognised for the year.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the associates. Where unrealised
losses on assets sales between the Group and its
associates are reversed on equity accounting, the
underlying asset is also tested for impairment from
the Group’s perspective. Where the associate uses
accounting policies other than those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances,
adjustments are made, where necessary, to conform
the associate’s accounting policies to those of the
Group when the associate’s financial statements are
adopted by the Group in applying the equity method.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interests in the associate, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate. For this purpose,
the Group’s interests in the associate is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE-ZZT—ZTF+-_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2. TEETBEREE (&)

2.4 Associates (Continued) 2.4 HEENT ()

After the application of equity method, the Group
determines whether it is necessary to recognise an
additional impairment loss on the Group’s investment
in its associates. At each reporting date, the Group
determines whether there is any objective evidence
that the investment in associate is impaired. If such
indications are identified, the Group calculates
the amount of impairment as being the difference
between the recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs to sell) of the associate
and its carrying amount. In determining the value in
use of the investment, the Group estimates its share
of the present value of the estimated future cash
flows expected to be generated by the associate,
including cash flows arising from the operations of the
associate and the proceeds on ultimate disposal of the
investment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are stated at cost less
any impairment losses. The results of associates
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZT—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2. TEETHBEREE (&)

2.5 Foreign currency translation 25 HEHmE

The financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is also the functional currency of the

Company.

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency of the individual
entity using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. At the reporting date, monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and

liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE IR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE-ZZT—ZTF+-_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into
RMB. Assets and liabilities have been translated into
RMB at the closing rate at the reporting date. Income
and expenses have been converted into RMB at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at
the average rates over the reporting period provided
that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have been
dealt with separately in the translation reserve in equity.
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 January
2005 have been treated as assets and liabilities of
the foreign operation and translated into RMB at the
closing rate. Goodwill arising on the acquisitions of
foreign operations before 1 January 2005 is translated
at the foreign exchange rate that applied at the date of
acquisition of the foreign operation.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of goods,
net of rebates and discounts. Provided it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised as follows:

(i) Sales of goods are recognised upon transfer of
the significant risks and rewards of ownership to
the customer. This is usually taken as the time
when goods are delivered and the customer has

accepted the goods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 EHZE—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)  Revenue from the sale of software systems is
recognised when the software system has been
delivered and installed and the customer has
examined and accepted the software system.

(i) Revenue from technical services is recognised

when the services are rendered.

(iv) Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

(vy Rental income under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis

over the lease terms.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. A
qualifying asset is an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed when

incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset when expenditure for the asset
is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale are being undertaken.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are

complete.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2010 EHZE—=

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess
of the aggregate of consideration transferred and
the amount recognised for non-controlling interests
over the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and

contingent liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of
consideration paid, the excess is recognised in profit or
loss on the acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is stated at cost less any impairment losses.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and is
tested annually for impairment (see note 2.12).

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included
in the determination of the amount of gain or loss on
disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and
research and development costs
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are recognised
initially at cost. After initial recognition, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated

impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is provided on straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The development costs capitalised,
which include cost of materials and direct labour, are
amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the products or processes up to eight
years from the date of commencement of commercial

operation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZT—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2. TEETHBEREE (&)

2.9 Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and 29 HEREE (BERN) RFEER

research and development costs (Continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

Intangible asset such as club membership with

indefinite useful life is carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Research and development costs

Costs associated with research activities are expensed
in profit or loss as they occur. Costs that are directly
attributable to the development projects whereby
research findings or other knowledge are applied to a
plan or design for the production of new or substantially
improved products and processes are recognised as
intangible assets, provided that they meet the following
recognition requirements:

(i) demonstration of technical feasibility of the

prospective product for internal use or sale;

(i) thereis intention to complete the intangible asset

and use or sell it;

(i)  the Group’s ability to use or sell the intangible
asset is demonstrated;

(iv) the intangible asset will generate probable

economic benefits through internal use or sale;

(v)  sufficient technical, financial and other resources

are available for completion; and

(vi) the expenditure attributable to the intangible
asset can be reliably measured.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE IR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE-ZZT—ZTF+-_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

2.10

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and
research and development costs (Continued)
Research and development costs (Continued)

Other development costs not capitalised are
recognised as an expense in the period as incurred.

Club membership and capitalised development costs
assets are tested for impairment as described below in
note 2.12.

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of
the leasehold interest in the land at the inception of
the lease, and other items of plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses.

Construction-in-progress (“CIP”) represents buildings,
plant and machinery under construction or pending
installation and is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes the costs
of construction and acquisition. No provision for
depreciation is made on CIP until such time as the
relevant assets are completed and ready for intended
use. When the assets concerned are available for
use, the costs are transferred to property, plant and
equipment and depreciated in accordance with the

policy as stated below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE AR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2010 EHZE—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

—EEF A=t HILEFE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives, taking into account their estimated residual
value and using the straight-line method, at the

following rates per annum:

Buildings 4%-5%
Leasehold improvements 19%-20%
Mould and equipment 9%-20%
Motor vehicles 19%-20%

The assets’ estimated residual values and estimated
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE IR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE-ZZT—ZTF+-_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11

212

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights represent up-
front payments to acquire the land use rights/land
under an operating lease. They are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated on a
straight-line basis over the lease term except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from use of the land.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group’s goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries,
property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and
land use rights, club membership, development
costs, interests in an associate, and the Company’s
investments in subsidiaries are subject to impairment
testing.

Goodwill and other intangible assets which are not
yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they are impaired. All other individual
assets are tested for impairment whenever there are
indications that the asset’s carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting
market conditions less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment
of time value of money and the risk specific to the
assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZT—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2. TEETHBEREE (&)

2.12 Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result,
some assets are tested individually for impairment and
some are tested at cash-generating unit level. Goodwill
in particular is allocated to those cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from synergies of
the related business combination and represent the
lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is

monitored for internal management purpose.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating
units, to which goodwill has been allocated, are
credited initially to the carrying amount of goodwill. Any
remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata to the
other assets in the cash generating unit, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less cost to sell or value in use, if
determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods. In respect of other assets,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE-ZZT—ZTF+-_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

212

2.13

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified

as operating leases.

(i) Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use of assets
held under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to profit or loss on
a straight line basis over the lease term except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased assets. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rental are charged to profit or loss in

the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZE—-Z—

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

TEt-A=t+—AILEE

2. FEETHBEREE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Leases (Continued)

(i) Assets leased out under operating leases as the
lessor
Assets leased out under operating leases are
measured and presented according to the nature
of the assets. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense over the lease
term on the same basis as the rental income.

Rental income receivable from operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.

2.14 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value
and all other financial assets are initially measured
at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.
Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
A regular way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale
of a financial asset under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the asset within the time frame
established generally by regulation or convention in the
marketplace concerned.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE=—ZT—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2. TEETHEREE(#)

2.14 Financial assets (Continued) 214 £RMEE (&)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These assets include financial assets held for trading.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment losses.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate and
transaction cost.

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial
assets includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the

following loss events:

- Significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;
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B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZT—ZFTF+_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2. FEETHBEREE (&)

2.14 Financial assets (Continued) 214 £REE ()

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

= It becoming probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- Significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor; and

- A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its

cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from the group of financial assets. Such
observable data includes but not limited to adverse
changes in the payment status of debtors in the
group and, national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the Group.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is

measured and recognised as follows:

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
loans and receivables has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss for

the period in which the impairment occurs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE=—ZT—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

214

2.15

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(Continued)

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment

loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed to the extent that it does not result
in a carrying amount of the financial asset exceeding
what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date the
impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is
recognised in profit or loss for the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to
the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax
assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of

tax expense in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE R AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZE—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

—EEF_A=F+HLFE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences, tax
losses available to be carried forward as well as other
unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they are
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss, or in equity if they relate to
items that are charged or credit directly to equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZ-ZT—ZFTF+-_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.15

2.16

217

2.18

Accounting for income taxes (Continued)
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,

(@  the Group has the legally enforceable right to set

off the recognised amounts; and

(b)  intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories comprise raw materials, supplies and
purchased goods. Cost is determined using weighted
average method and in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, include all expenses directly
attributable to the manufacturing process as well as
appropriate portions of related production overheads,
based on normal operating capacity. Financing costs
are not taken into consideration. At the reporting date,
inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated cost of completion and applicable selling

expenses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and
in hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

2. TEETBEREE (&)

2.15

2.16

217

2.18

etz ast (&)
ERTIER - REIRBEEE K
AEHRBRBEAFEZS

@ AEEHEABECHERSE
BZ AR REH BTN ;
54

b SFREEHEARBERE
ERAEZEE -

FE
FEEERN - HFEmRARE
B RAERNEF AR
o MBEF R EK R - Bl
BRRBLIFEEENERREN
SEBRZMERX  REELE
EFRZRERZBEERD - MHK
ARTatE - FEREREBIEK
RER B FEZ BIEEIIFR -
AERFERBEFEHT b
B BB T8 HA 52 PR AN % 3 AR 8
EFX °

RERkREEEY

R RS EEMERETERNE
TRFERE  ERFFME
FREZNMAR/=MEARIIAT - B
RAB®RADMeRAE REE
PR ITAZRERBREHR

EEN
TERERRER REANBE %
TR EEERE °

Annual Report 2010 =& —ZTFEF# e
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZE—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19

2.20

Retirement benefit costs
Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
a defined contribution plan.

The employees of the Company and its subsidiaries
which operate in the PRC are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local

municipal government.

The Company and its subsidiaries are required to
contribute 8.0% to 22.5% of its payroll costs to
the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Financial liabilities
The Group’s financial liabilities include bank
borrowings, trade, bills and other payables and

accrued charges.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All interest related charges are recognised
as an expense in finance costs in profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation

under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE IR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZ-ZT—ZFTF+-_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Financial liabilities (Continued)

2.21

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
date.

Trade, bills and other payables and accrued

charges

These payables are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party

is considered to be related to the group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
the group or exercise significant influence over
the group in making financial and operating policy
decisions, or has joint control over the group;

(i) the group and the party are subject to common

control;

(i) the party is an associate of the group or a joint
venture in which the group is a venturer;
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 EHZE—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

—EEF A=t HLEFE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Related parties (Continued)

2.22

(iv) the party is a member of key management
personnel of the group or the group’s parent,
or a close family member of such an individual,
or is an entity under the control, joint control or

significant influence of such individuals;

(v)  the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan

which is for the benefit of employees of the group

or of any entity that is a related party of the group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.

Government grants

Non-refundable government grants are recognised at
their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions. When the grant
relates to an expense item, it is recognised as other
income in the statement of comprehensive income
and presented as such over the periods necessary to
match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs that
it is intended to compensate. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful life

of the asset by way of reduced depreciation expenses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE=—ZT—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.23

2.24

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and

adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
uncertain events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic

benefits is remote.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of

the performance of those components.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZT—ZFTF+_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Segment reporting (Continued)
Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purpose unless the
segments have similar characteristics and are similar
in respect of the nature of products and services, the
nature of production processes, the type or class
of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they are
share a majority of these criteria.

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
following new standards, amendments and interpretations
(the “new HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA, which are
relevant to and effective for the Group’s financial statements
for the annual period beginning on 1 January 2010:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs
Amendments to HKAS 39 Eligible Hedged Items

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment — Group Cash-

settled Share-based Payment

Transactions

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations

HK(IFRIC) - Interpretation 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners

HK Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B REERAR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZE-—ZT—ZTF+_A=+—HILtFE

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)

Other than as noted below, the adoption of the new HKFRSs
had no material impact on how the results and financial
position for the current and prior periods have been prepared

and presented.

HKFRS 3 (Revised) — Business Combinations and

HKAS 27(Revised) — Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

The revised accounting policies are described in note 2 to
the financial statements, which are effective prospectively for
business combinations effected in financial periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2009. Changes in HKFRS 3 include the
valuation of non-controlling interest, the accounting for
transaction costs, the initial recognition and subsequent
measurement of a contingent consideration and business
combinations achieved in stages. These changes impact
the amount of goodwill and the results in the period that an
acquisition occurs and future results. The adoption of revised
HKFRS 3 has had no impact to the financial statements as
there has been no business combination transaction during
the year.

The revised HKAS 27 requires that a change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary (without loss of control) is accounted
for as a transaction with owners in their capacity as owners,
accordingly, such transactions are recognised within equity.
When control is lost and any remaining interest in the entity is
re-measured to fair value, and a gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss. The adoption of revised HKAS 27 has had no

impact on the current year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZT—TF+_A=1+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)

HKAS 17 (Amendments) — Leases

As part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009, HKAS
17 has been amended in relation to the classification
of leasehold land. Before the amendment to HKAS 17,
the Group was required to classify leasehold land as
operating leases and to present leasehold land as prepaid
lease payments in the statement of financial position. The
amendment to HKAS 17 has removed such a requirement
and requires that the classification of leasehold land
should be based on the general principles set out in HKAS
17, that is, whether or not substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of a leased asset have
been transferred to the lessee. The Group has reassessed
the classification of leasehold land of its unexpired leases
at 1 January 2010 on the basis of information existing
at the inception of those leases and concluded that the
classification of such leases as operating leases continues to

be appropriate.

HK Interpretation 5 — Presentation of Financial
Statements - Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
The Interpretation is a clarification of an existing standard,
HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements. It sets out the
conclusion reached by the HKICPA that a term loan which
contains a clause which gives the lender the unconditional
right to demand repayment at any time shall be classified as
a current liability in accordance with paragraph 69(d) of HKAS
1 irrespective of the probability that the lender will invoke the
clause without cause.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZ-ZT—ZFTF+-_A=1+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)

HK Interpretation 5 — Presentation of Financial
Statements - Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
(Continued)

In order to comply with the requirements of HK Interpretation
5, the Group has changed its accounting policy on the
classification of term loans that contain a repayment on
demand clause. Under the new policy, term loans with
clauses which give the lender the unconditional right to call
the loan at any time are classified as current liabilities in the
statement of financial position. Previously such term loans
were classified in accordance with the agreed repayment
schedule unless the Group had breached any of the loan
covenants set out in the agreement as of the reporting date or
otherwise had reason to believe that the lender would invoke
its rights under the immediate repayment clause within the
foreseeable future.

The new accounting policy has had no effect on the reported
classification of borrowings in previous year, accordingly, no
retrospective reclassification presented.

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements,
certain new and amended HKFRSs have been published but
are not yet effective, and have not been adopted early by the
Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R T M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZT—TF+_A=1+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 2%

Amendments to HKAS 32 Classification of Rights Issues'

Amendments to HK(IFRIC) — Prepayments of a Minimum
Interpretation 14 Funding Requirement®

HK(IFRIC) - Interpretation 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments?

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures®

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosure — Transfers of Financial
Assets*

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax — Recovery of
Underlying Assets®

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011
9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be
adopted in the Group’s accounting policy for the first period
beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement.

Information on new and amended HKFRSs that are expected
to have impact on the Group’s accounting policies is
provided below. Certain other new and amended HKFRSs
have been issued but are not expected to have a material
impact of the Group’s financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZ-ZT—ZFTF+-_A=1+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

The standard is effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013 and addresses the classification and
measurement of financial assets. The new standard reduces
the number of measurement categories of financial assets
and all financial assets will be measured at either amortised
cost or fair value based on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset. Fair value gains and
losses will be recognised in profit or loss except for those on
certain equity investments which will be presented in other
comprehensive income. The directors are currently assessing
the possible impact of the new standard on the Group’s

results and financial position in the first year of application.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experiences and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below:
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 EHZE—Z

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

U

(i)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has
suffered any impairment in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in note 2.12. The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use
of estimates. Details of the estimates used in
assessing impairment for goodwill are set out in

note 15.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result
of competitor actions in response to severe
industry cycles. Management will reassess the

estimations at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2010 EHZE—=

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

)

Estimated impairment of receivables and other
receivables

The policy for the impairment provision of
receivables and other receivables of the Group
is based on analysis of the ageing and, where
appropriate, other relevant aspects of accounts.
Management also considers the relevant risks
in particular business sectors in the impairment
assessment process. A considerable amount of
judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each debtor. Management will
reassess the provision at each reporting date. If
the financial conditions of debtors of the Group
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment
of their ability to make payments, additional

provision for impairment may be required.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZT—ZFTF+_A=1+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(iv)

PRC income tax and value added tax

Despite in the opinion of the Company’s directors
the Group had complied with all relevant tax
law and regulations as applicable including
PRC income tax and value added tax law and
regulations, judgement was made in respect of
such assessment. Penalties and/or additional
provision may arise in case of non-compliance of
which the amount cannot be estimated reliably

for the purpose of these financial statements.

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the Group’s

accounting policies

U

Research and development activities

Careful judgement by the Company’s directors is
applied when deciding whether the recognition
requirements for development costs have been
met. This is necessary as the economic success
of any product development is uncertain and may
be subject to future technical problems at the
time of recognition. Judgements are based on
the best information available at each reporting
date. In addition, all internal activities related to
the research and developments of new products
are continuously monitored by the Group’s
management.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B REERAR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE=—ZT—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the

net amount received and receivable for goods and software

systems sold and services rendered arising from the principal

activities of the Group, net of value-added tax (“VAT”) and/or

business tax.

Revenue &=

Other income Hibug A

Interest income on financial 1R SE R AR RR AR
assets stated at amortised cost ZERMEERNE

— Bank interest income —R1TFI B UA

VAT refunds* B R *

Non-refundable government subsidies** BT R

Rental income HEWA

Others HAth

* VAT refunds relating to the sales of certain products during the period

from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2010 (2009: 1 January 2009
to 31 December 2009) was approved and refunded by the PRC tax

bureau in the current year.

= Non-refundable government subsidies were received from the PRC

government for subsidising the Group in conducting and launching

projects relating to research and development activities. There are no

unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these grants.
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2010 2009
—T-TF —TEAF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AR®BTT

661,114 462,440
A
1,132 1,518
27,289 24,200
463 1,324
7,823 7,610
1,035 1,683
37,742 36,335
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZE—T—ZTF+_A=+—HILtFE

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group has identified its operating segment and prepared
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information report to the Group’s executive directors for their
decision about resources allocation to the Group’s business
components and review of these components’ performance.
There is only one business component in internal reporting
to the executive directors, which is providing products
and services serving the automotive aftermarket and the
automobile industry in the PRC and certain overseas

countries.

The directors assess segment profit or loss using a measure
of operating profit. The measurement policies the Group uses
for reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same
as those used in its financial statements prepared under
HKFRSs, except that certain items are not included in arriving
at the operating results of the operating segment (rental
income and corporate expenses).

Segment assets include all assets with the exception of
corporate assets and club membership which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of operating segment as

these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities include trade payables, bills payables,
other payables, deferred income and accrued charges
attributable to the manufacturing and sales activities of the
business segment. Bank borrowings are managed directly by
the segment.

The operating segment is monitored and strategic decisions
are made on the basis of adjusted segment operating results.
Revenue reported below represents revenue generated
from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales
during the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE=—ZT—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5.
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The revenue and profit generated by the Group’s operating

segment are summarised as follows:

Wz~ HttRA R 5 BEHR

(&)

S B AR D AR E 4 2 Waat KOs AR

M

2010 2009
== —ZETNEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®ETT
(Restated)
€ <==27l))
Reportable segment revenue HERzn = 661,114 462,440
Reportable segment profit HEER 2D EBRR 115,806 60,833
Interest income B A 1,132 1,518
Interest expenses B (16,546) (19,039)
Depreciation and amortisation e RS (44,735) (38,209)
Annual charge on leasehold land HETH &
and land use rights T AETE (526) (526)
Loss on disposals of property, HEWE  BEK&
plant and equipment HfE 2 BB (36) (213)
Impairment of trade and other receivables ~ EULE RN
H At FEMCR IR (E (3,139) (8,590)
Reportable segment assets BERZDEEE 1,117,219 1,031,880
Interests in an associate R—EEtE AR 2 En 1,978 7,186
Additions to non-current segment FRREZIERED
assets during the year DEPEE 53,834 62,582
Reportable segment liabilities BERZIBEE 464,232 469,538
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Notes to the Financial Statements

LR El

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZT—ZFTF+_A=1+—HILFE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Reconciliation of reportable segment profit and reportable

segment assets:

Reportable segment profit
Rental income
Corporate expenses

Consolidated profit before income tax

Reportable segment assets
Club membership

Corporate assets

Group assets

a Launch Tech Company Limited 73T TAERHEAR (D B R A T

V-t el 2
HE2 WA
EEH

BRETS B Al AR &R

AWz A PEE
SERE

DRAE
EHAE

s~ AR 2 EEHR

(&)

A2 DR BA2 R DREE

HERWT -

2010 2009
—TFTF —ZTTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIT ARETT
115,806 60,833
7,823 7,610
(6,229) (1,039)
117,400 67,404
2010 2009
—T-TF —ETTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETT
(Restated)

(ge&E75)

1,117,219 1,031,880
1,177 1177

= 3,329
1,118,396 1,036,386




Notes to the Financial Statements

B REERAR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE=—ZT—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND
SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group’s revenues from external customers and its non-
current assets are divided into the following geographical

areas:

5. W& At A RS EEHR

(&)

AEEREINAEF REFERBEEK
ANETHIEE S

INARBE P Z WA
Revenue from external IEmENEE
customers Non-current assets
2010 2009 2010 2009
—FT-LTF ZFTTNF = —ETTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®,T T ARETRT ARETT ARETET
(Restated)
(ge&E5)
Local (country of domicile): 7N (FREEE)
— The PRC, other than —

Hong Kong (TBEEE) 384,977 234,840 338,325 335,666
Europe B 91,406 90,658 338 486
America EM 99,623 78,657 = =
Others EA 85,108 58,285 - -

276,137 227,600 338 486
Total et 661,114 462,440 338,663 336,152

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical location of the non-current
assets (including property, plant and equipment, leasehold
land and land use rights, goodwill, development costs,
interests in an associate and club membership) is based on
the physical location of the asset.

B s DRI AT IR  Z BRFF R
NEmzEE D - FRBDEE (B
W%~ BE KRR - MELH Rt
FtE  BE - FERA  R-HEBERQ
DR EERE) 2 IREE
EFTEME S o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZT—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

6. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 6. PBRETEHADRF
2010 2009
—E—TF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETR

Profit before income tax has been arrived at ~ BRFT{SHE AR A Th 48418/
after charging/(crediting) the following items: (5t A ) N3IRIARE

Staff costs ST
Directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration EENESEME
(note 7) (ME7) 1,445 1,328
Other staff costs Hith 8 TR 73,496 59,803
Retirement benefits R 9,794 8,221
84,735 69,352
Less: Staff costs capitalised as W ERRBEKAEE
development costs (note 16) BEARZ BTRA (H7E16) (12,495) (16,638)
72,240 52,714
Research expenditure for current year REEHEERHSE 14,156 8,173
Add: Amortisation of development o B 2B
costs (note 16) (Bt 16) 13,588 12,124
Research and development expenses EEE R 27,744 20,297
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #71% « BE KRG E 31,147 26,085
Operating lease charges on land THREFLEHERR
and buildings 7,478 5,181
Annual charge on leasehold land ME T & i fE A
and land use rights BEE 526 526
Loss on disposals of property, HEME  BEELEZ
plant and equipment Eia 36 213
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEE & 1,959 1,295
Net exchange loss b 5 18558 10,385 1,483
Provision for impairment on trade receivables  FEWE 5 8 ZRl (B B 2,988 2,686
Provision for impairment on other receivables £ fth & U TR IE R (B B4 151 5,904
The Group’s cost of inventories recognised as expenses AEER =T —TFR_TTNFAME
during the years 2010 and 2009 is equal to the cost of sales REMY 2 FERAZREIRE 2R
shown in the consolidated statement of comprehensive RN ZHEKA ©
income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS ER T M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE-ZZT—ZTF+-_A=1+—HILFE

7. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 7. EEREE#ME

REMUNERATION
Salaries,
allowances
and other Retirement
benefits benefits
Fees ¢ 28 costs Total
ne REMEF BRRERHA @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETFT
2010 —E-2%
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Liu Xin i - 419 4 423
Mr. Liu Jun b - 341 4 345
Ms. Liu Ping 2 T4t
(appointed on 18 March 2010) (720103 A 18 HER() - 202 2 204
Professor Wang Xue Zhi FEFHE
(resigned on 18 March 2010) (R20104 3 A 18 ABHE) - - - -
Non-executive directors HHITEE
Ms. Liu Yong 2Lt 10 = - 10
Ms. Liu Xiaohua AEEL L
(appointed on 30 September 2010)  (R20104 9 A 30 BEZ ) 10 - - 10
Independent non-executive directors B FEI/TEE
Dr. Zou Shulin PEMEL
(appointed on 18 March 2010) (1201043 F 18 HEZ ) 10 - - 10
Mr. Jiang Chao BRLE
(appointed on 18 March 2010) (120104 3 A 18 HEZ ) 10 - - 10
Mr. Liu Yuan AR5EE
(appointed on 18 March 2010) (1R 201043 A 18 BEZ ) 10 - - 10
Mr. Zhang Xiao Yu RNEIEAE
(resigned on 18 March 2010) (1201043 A 18 BEHE) - - - -
Professor Hu Zi Zheng T IEHR
(resigned on 18 March 2010) (7201043 A 18 BEHE) - - - -
Supervisors EZ
Mr. Sun Zhoungwen B st
(appointed on 18 March 2010) (720103 A 18 HER() 10 = - 10
Mr. Du Xuan it g4
(appointed on 18 March 2010) (720103 A 18 HER() 10 = - 10
Mr. Wang Xi Lin TEMEE 10 390 3 403
Ms. Hou Wen Tao ExELL
(resigned on 18 March 2010) (720103 A 18 HEHT) - - - -
Mr. Guo Jian Yuan PRREE
(resigned on 18 March 2010) (720103 A 18 HEHT) - - - -
80 1,352 13 1,445
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZT—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

7. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 7. EERESEME (&)
REMUNERATION (Continued)
Salaries,
allowances
and other Retirement
benefits benefits
Fees 54 28 costs Total
ik RE AR RAREHKA @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETTT ARETTT ARET T ARETT

2009 ZBENF

Executive directors HITEE

Mr. Liu Xin Fibines - 413 4 417
Mr. Liu Jun it - 350 4 354
Professor Wang Xue Zhi FEFHE - - - -
Non-executive director HHTEE

Ms. Liu Yong SRt 15 - = 15

Independent non-executive directors B S /TEE

Mr. Zhang Xiao Yu RMNESRE 15 = - 15
Professor Hu Zi Zheng T EHE 15 - = 15
Mr. Yim Hing Wah BEERE
(deceased on 14 July 2009) (RZZZNFLA+HBERHE) 5 - = 5
Supervisors Ex
Ms. Hou Wen Tao (E3%¢ 2°¢am 10 - - 10
Mr. Guo Jian Yuan SRR A 10 = = 10
Mr. Wang Xi Lin EABHEAE 10 475 2 487
80 1,238 10 1,328
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE IR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZE—-ZT—ZTF+_—_A=+—HILtFE

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
REMUNERATION (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the five highest
paid individuals of the Group included one director and one
supervisor (2009: one director and one supervisor), details of
which are included above. The emoluments of the remaining
three highest paid individuals (2009: three individuals) are as

follows:
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e SRR EMET
Retirement benefits cost RIRE KA

The emoluments of each of the three individuals (2009: three
individuals) fall within the band of Nil to HKD1,000,000.
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors,
supervisors or highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office (2009: Nil). None of the directors waived or agreed to

waive any emoluments during the year (2009: Nil).

EENEEME (A)

BE-FT-FFT-A=t LA
B AEBAMEHHFALEE—{
EFR-UEF(-TINF  —fIE
QR G G BT

B HHB=M(CTTNEF =) &S
FALHF MWT

2010 2009

T4 —EBTHE

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETET ARBTT

1,905 1,641
12 9
1,917 1,650

= (ZETAF: DA AXLEKBEZ
B < FZ 2= 1,000,000 7T © FA
REEWERBEES  BESd&aE
AT ZAERIEB - {ERE AR N
AREBR 2 RE S E AR 2 fE
ZETNF  E) c EERNFRABER

RARBREEAHEM(—FTNEF -
) o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZT—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. B
2010 2009
== —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT
Interest charges on bank loans stated at R SHR AN REBRIRITE K
amortised cost: ZABFH -
— wholly repayable within five years —ERAFRNBEER 16,546 19,039
Bank charges RITEA 337 1,015
16,883 20,054
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. SR % H
2010 2009
—TTF —TThE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®ETT
Enterprise income tax - PRC BEFEH —F
— current year —IRFEE 7,729 4,687
— underprovision for prior years —BEFERETE 4,435 -
Income tax — overseas FRiSH — /85N 155 666
Deferred tax (note 31) IRAEREIE (PFfIEES1) (11) -
Total income tax expense FriSHisz i 12,308 5,368

PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT”) has been provided based
on the estimated taxable income for PRC taxation purposes
at the rates of taxation prevailing in the provinces in which
the Group operates. The Company’s overseas subsidiary is
subject to income tax at the rate of 32% (2009: 42%).

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law which was
effective from 1 January 2008, a unified income tax rate has
been applied to Company and F®IITHTAEEEFIZE AR A
A] (“Launch Software”). In respect of tax rate that applies
to the Company and Launch Software, these enterprises
enjoyed a preferential tax rate of 15% in the past and the tax
rate will be transitioned to 25% over five years.

e Launch Tech Company Limited SZ=YIH TAERHEAR D B R A 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE IR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE-ZZT—ZTF+-_A=1+—HILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

BT R EAREE AR (“Launch Shanghai”) and
Launch Software which originally enjoyed the preference of
regular tax holidays will continue to enjoy original preference
in accordance with the preferential measures and terms
stipulated by the original tax law, administrative regulations
and relevant documents until the expiration of the preference.

On 29 October 2009, the Company continued to be
recognised as a high technology enterprise and is thereby
subject to a preferential tax rate of 15% for the 3 financial
years from 2009 to 2011.

Launch Software, a subsidiary of the Company established
in the PRC, as a software company recognised by the local
tax bureau, is subject to income tax at the rate of 22% (2009:
20%). It is entitled to the tax holiday of “two-year exemption
and three-year 50% reduction” from the first profitable year
of operation. 2006 was the first profit-making year for Launch
Software and was the first year of its tax holiday. Accordingly,
the income tax rate applicable to Launch Software for 2010

was 11%.

Launch Shanghai, a subsidiary of the Company established
in the PRC, is subject to income tax at the rate of 25% (2009:
25%). It is entitled to the tax holiday of “two-year exemption
and three-year 50% reduction” from its first profitable year
of operation. 2008 was the first year for Launch Shanghai to
entitle to the tax exemption. Accordingly, the income tax rate
applicable to Launch Shanghai for 2010 was 12.5%.

FrigHi< i ()

RAEZBEE R 2 LBTA#MAR
BERREN([_L&TTAE ) BTt -
BRBREBDE - BIEAR LG
REZHBRRRERLIEREEZFIR
EZRERR  BEHRREZHEHR
1k e

R-ZZNE+HA-+NHE  ARQE#%
BWHERASREEDEE WAMB=F
THERE_T——F =M HFEE
BERZE15% °

ANRA TR B 2 M B A Rl 4
ERM AR BEROEMGAR - Az
22% (=T NF : 20%) T REMAFT
B8 ZRREENEELEENFE
R =R [ MERER=FRF] 2
B o ZTTNF RIS & ([EER F
B MAEGEMBESREE - At -
TAEHER ZE——F 2 BAMEHE
H11% °

RARRF BRI ZHIEBRAR ST
1E + HIRBEW(ZFZTNF : 25%) 2 i
REMBIE - W E B ECEENFER
EREZ(MERER=FRF | 2B
BEH - —TT)\FALETIEEZ
BEHBEENFE - At - EETER
ZETF ERAMEMER12.5% °
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B &R T M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-—Z—ZTF+ - A=1+—HIFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9. FEHiXH (&)
Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting FTi5 %+ 2 B B & 510 i A Rt E
profit at applicable tax rates is as follows: ZERRIAS ¢
2010 2009
—E-TF ZETNEF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TRT

Profit before income tax FR PRS0 A& A 117,400 67,404
Tax at the rates applicable in the SEEERBATRE

respective jurisdictions Bz Biia 25,139 13,481
Tax effect attributable to tax exemption R IR E (7,835) (12,788)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR S 2 B2 2,016 2,184
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BRERBIW S 2 G & (6,403) (2,439)
Utilisation of tax losses previously B < BIARTER < TIBE1E

not recognised (5,044) -
Underprovision of EIT in respect BEFELEFEREETE

of prior years 4,435 =
Tax losses not recognised as RNHER IR IE & B

deferred tax assets iy ati=! - 4,555
Others HAb - 356
Income tax expense TSz 12,308 5,353
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11.

12.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE IR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE-ZZT—ZTF+-_A=1+—HILFE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Of the consolidated profit attributable to owners of
the Company for the year of RMB105,092,000 (2009:
RMB62,051,000), an income of RMB57,391,000 (2009:
RMB16,957,000) has been dealt with in the financial

statements of the Company.

DIVIDEND

No interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2010
(2009: Nil) was declared.

No final dividend is proposed for the year ended 31
December 2010. (2009: RMBO0.3 per share after shares
consolidation as described in note 32(b) amounting to
RMB18,108,000)

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of
RMB105,092,000 (2009: RMB62,051,000) and on weighted
average number of 60,360,000 and 60,360,000 shares in
issue during the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009
respectively. The weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic earnings per share has been
adjusted for the share consolidation on 15 February 2011 as
mentioned in note 32(b) and the comparative figure has been

restated accordingly.

No diluted earnings per share has been presented as there
had been no dilutive potential ordinary shares in both years of
2010 and 2009.

10.

11.

12.

AE R A

REERRREE ANEIEZRE BT
AR #105,092,0007C( —EZ N F
AR #62,051,00070) F AR
# 57,391,000 L (=2 NF : AR
16,957,000 7T ) 2 )i A AR 2N A 5] B 75 3
mPRE -

8=\

AARYEERBEE_ZT—ZTF+_H
=t+—BHLEFEZHHEBRE(ZTFN
FE)

HE-_ZT-—TF+_A=+—HIHF
EYAEZKERPBRE(ZZEZN
4 B F R M EE32(b) B it A% 1) & B
& BRARY0O3ITL aHXARE
18,108,000 7T) °

BRER

BREABFNDIBEAARERSEE
A FE 15 FI A R ¥ 105,092,000 70 (=
TTNEF  AR¥62,051,00070) 5
FEBEE-_Z—ZER-_ZTTNF+=A
=+—HIFEBEBITRMMETITE
60,360,000 fi% & 60,360,000 % & 15 &+
H o BEREARBNME - TERRH
INHE 19 8 A FE M EE 32(b) it i =
T——F - A+RBERERIRG A G
MIEL A - LBREFTIEET -

R-E-ZER_TTNFMFLE

F = ==
BEEHE N 2 ZTRRRD - IEZ7
SHREEERT
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B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZT—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. M1% - BMERFZE
Group £5
Construction Leasehold  Mould and Motor
in progress Buildings improvements  equipment vehicles Total

EEIR B AEURKE BALRE AE it
RMBO00  RMBO00 ~ RMBO00  RMBO00  RMB000  RMBOOO
ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR

At 1 January 2009 R=EENE-A-H
Cost KA 4,157 161,289 4,371 118,095 17,19 305,108
Accumulated depreciation ZihE - (17,956) (2,768) (40,562) (10,355) (71,641)
Net book amount FEE 4,157 143,333 1,603 77,533 6,841 233 467
Year ended 31 December 2009 HZE-FENE+-A=+-H

I
Opening net book amount HEEFE 4,157 143,333 1,603 77,533 6,841 233,467
Additions AE 3242 4488 9% 36,111 2,005 45,944
Disposals e - - @) (191) (458) 657)
Depreciation Vil - (6,632) (719) (16,59) (2,144) (26,085)
Reclassffications EZ bk - (47) 3 10 34 -
Exchange realignment B AR - - - 3% - 3
Closing net book amount BREEFE 7,399 141,142 983 96,903 6,278 252,705
At 31 December 2009 RZEENETZA=T—H
Cost XA 7,399 165,729 4,454 152,526 18,247 348355
Accumulated depreciation ZHiE - (24,587) (3471) (55,629) (11,969 (95,650)
Net book amount FEFE 7,399 141,142 983 96,903 6,278 252,705

Year ended 31 December 2010 H#Z=E-FF+-A=1-A

LEE

Opening net book amount HREFE 7,399 141,142 983 96,903 6,278 252,705
Additions HE 7,684 205 10 27,674 2518 38,091
Disposals e - - - (664) (142) (806)
Depreciation nE - (6,834) (325) (21,560) (2.429) (31,147)
Reclassffications B (6572) 6,572 - (19 19 -
Exchange realignment AR - - (48) - (48)
Closing net book amount BAREFE 8,511 141,085 668 102,286 6,245 258,795
At 31 December 2010 RZE-E5+-A=1-A

Cost A 8511 172,506 4464 179,414 19,593 384,488
Accumulated depreciation ZinE - (31,421) (3,796) (77,128) (13348) (125699
Net book amount FEFE 8511 141,085 668 102,286 6,245 258,795
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE-ZZT—ZTF+-_A=1+—HILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. M1% - WERZE (&)
(Continued)
NG|
Company
Construction Leasehold  Mould and Motor
inprogress  Buildings improvements  equipment vehicles Total

ERIR BT RENRKE BARRE HE it
RMBO0O  RMBOOO  RMB'OOO  RMBO00  RMBOO0  RMB'000
ARBTL  ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR  ARETR

At 1 January 2009 RZZTNF-HA-A

Cost A 4,157 122,704 4,268 72,437 15,533 219,099
Accumulated depreciation ZiE - (0.731) (2,739) (21,591) (0,037) 43,098)
Net book amount FEFE 4,157 112,973 1529 50,846 6,496 176,001

Year ended 31 December 2000 HE-ZENF+-A=1—H

IHFE

Opening net book value SNEARE 4157 112,973 1529 50,846 6,49 176,001
Additions AE 3,249 4,407 9% 34,281 1943 43,971
Disposals e = - (¢ (136) (459) (603)
Depreciation e - (4799 (702) (12,160) (2,080) (19,741)
Transfer from subsidiaries EREHBAF - 15 15 9,055 121 9,206
Reclassifications BN E - (47) 3 10 34 -
Closing net book amount HREEFE 7,399 112,549 935 81,89 6,055 208,834
At 31 December 2009 RZEENFF-A=1—H

Cost kA 7,399 127,082 4,395 119,405 16,779 275,060
Accumulated depreciation ZiHTE - (14,533) (3.460) (37,509) (10,724) (66,226)
Net book amount REHE 7,399 112,549 935 81,896 6,055 208,834

Year ended 31 December 2010 #Z2=2-E5+-A=1-H

LEE

Opening net book value HEEFE 7,399 112,549 935 81,896 6,055 208,834
Additions AE 1,112 - 10 26,145 2,376 29,643
Disposals e - = = (664) (127) (r91)
Depreciation e - (4912 (314) (18,040) (2.346) (25,612)
Reclassffications Eiipaes (4,353 4,353 = (19 19 =
Closing net book amount BRREFE 4,158 111,990 631 89,318 5,977 212,074
At 31 December 2010 R-B-ZF+-A=1-H

Cost AR 4158 131435 4,405 144,824 18,281 303,103
Accumulated depreciation ZirE - (19,445) (3774) (55,506) (12,304) (91,09
Net book amount REFE 4,158 111,990 631 89,318 5,977 212,074
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2010 & Z= —

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

T+ -A=t+—ALLFE

=

13.

Bank borrowings are secured on the Group’s and the

Company’s certain buildings for the carrying amount of
RMB134,092,000 and RMB100,644,000 respectively (2009:
RMB132,764,000 and RMB104,171,000 respectively).

14. LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE

RIGHTS

14.

These are up-front payments to acquire the leasehold land

and land use rights and their carrying amount are analysed as

follows:

Outside Hong Kong held on:
|Leases of over 50 years
Leases of between 10

to 50 years

Opening carrying amount
Annual charge of prepaid
operating lease payments

Closing carrying amount

BAAIME :

50F A 2 A

10F £ 504
2T

R mE{E
BNEEHE
NRZE&

HIRRRmE{E

W~ BB RRE ()

RITIER T AR EB R AR RIREE
2 Bl A A R #134,092,0007C M A R
#100,644,000C( Z T ZF L F: H
Bl A& AR #132,764,000 7T & A R #
104,171,000 7T) HY & THEF(EER -

ME K+t E AR

It T B8 AR & £ 3 Ko 4 3 {5k R P S A<
ZFEE - BREFESNAT

Group Company

REH VN/NC]
2010 2009 2010 2009
—T-ZTF ZTTNF —T-TF —TTNF
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFIT ARBTFT ARBTT ARKTT

906 971 906 971
19,969 20,430 8,403 8,594
20,875 21,401 9,309 9,565

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBETTT ARETE ARBTIT ARBTET
21,401 21,927 9,565 9,821
(526) (526) (256) (256)
20,875 21,401 9,309 9,565

Bank borrowings are secured on the land of a subsidiary of

the Company for the carrying amount of RMB11,566,000

(2009: RMB11,836,000).

e Launch Tech Company Limited SZ=YIH TAERHEAR D B R A 7
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15. GOODWILL

Group

Opening and closing carrying
amount, as previously
reported

Prior year adjustment

Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE-ZZT—ZTF+-_A=1+—HILFE

HA4) & B R BR T (B
 WNRT 23R

(note 2.1) BEFERE (FHE2.1)
Opening and closing carrying HA%) & BAR BR A
amount, as restated (ge=5)
Closing carrying amount HRAREE
Gross carrying amount AREAE
Accumulated amortisation RETHESH
Closing net carrying amount HARERED A

15. E&
&5
2010 2009 2008
=== —TThEFE —ZTT)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREBT T AREBT T
(Restated) (Restated)
(RE 1) (RE 1))
3,658 3,658
(1,497) (1,497)
2,161 2,161
2,221 2,221 2,221
(60) (60) (60)
2,161 2,161 2,161

The goodwill at 31 December 2010 comprises goodwill
arising from the acquisitions of Launch Software and Launch
Europe GmbH amounting to approximately RMB1.2 million
and RMB1.0 million respectively at the respective dates of
acquisition.

RZE—ZF+_A=t+—HzEE "
BIEEWEE TR R & Launch Europe
GmbHME £ Z2EE - REUHE A
2 B # A R #1,200,0007T & A R #
1,000,000 7T °
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZT—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

15. GOODWILL (Continued) 15. & (&)

The carrying amount of goodwill is allocating to the cash
generating unit of the provision of products and services
serving the automotive aftermarket and the automobile
industry. Based on the impairment assessment of the
recoverable amount of goodwill using the value-in-use
calculations, covering a four-year cash-flow projections up
to year 2014, in the opinion of the directors, no impairment
provision is considered necessary for the balance of the
Group’s goodwill for the year (2009: Nil).

The key assumptions used for value in use calculation were

as follows:
Growth rate 8 5%
Discount rate Hrif =

The key assumptions also include stable profit margins,
which have been determined based on past performance.
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflect specific risk
relating the cash generating unit of the provision of products
and services serving the automotive aftermarket and the

automobile industry.

Apart from the considerations described above in
determining the value in use of cash generating unit above,
the Group’s management is not currently aware of any other
probable changes that would necessitate changes in its key
estimates.

e Launch Tech Company Limited SZ=YIH TAERHEAR D B R A 7

BEZREEIRERIBEERTSR
METERHERMREZREELS
iz - REVERBEZH BB AN ESE
ERERIF  MEZE T —NEFILMF
MTERHIR S REBETTIER o KBRS
R EFRRERHAREREZHE
ERERE (—ETNEF - |) o

AEEREERAZZZ/mRAOT

2010 2009
—T-TF —TTAF
10.00% 10.00%
5.99% 6.40%

ERRFNMBEIZEGHE - TIRE
BERBREE - FIRAOITRERBHA
W RERERAFTEER TS MTETE
RHER LR 2 REEEEVA B
R E R o

BB IR A R
ZRHERS  ARBERERFLT
HEE AR B EM BT B
HIED -



Opening carrying amount
Development labour
cost capitalised (note 6)
Development expenses
capitalised
Transfer from a subsidiary
Amortisation charge (note 6)

Closing carrying amount

Gross carrying amount
Accumulated amortisation

Closing carrying amount

All amortisation is included in “research and development
expenses” in the statement of comprehensive income.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE IR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE-ZZT—ZTF+-_A=1+—HILFE

16. DEVELOPMENT COSTS

HEREE

BYFEA (MEE6)
X

BIFEAR
2= Rt YN
BHER (HEE6)

HREHE

fREAE
RetH

HRERE

16. BIEER A

Group Company
3] yN=|

2010 2009 2010 2009
%5 ZZTHhE “Z-% “EENE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFT ARETFT ARETFT
51,622 47,008 12,776 14,372
12,495 16,638 - 2,477
3,248 - - -
- - 20,241 -
(13,588) (12,124) (4,262) (4,073)
53,677 51,622 28,755 12,776
122,385 106,642 82,303 33,737
(68,708) (65,120 (53,548) (20,961)
53,677 51,522 28,755 12,776

A o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZT—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. RMB AT 2RE
2010 2009
—T—ZF —ZENF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TRT

Unlisted investments, at cost FELTHIRE - FRAAE 96,853 96,853
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December RZZE—ZTF+_A=+—H ' A2
2010 are as follows: MBARZFIBRT :
Form of Place of Registered Percentage of
Name of business registration and fully registered capital
subsidiary structure and operations paid capital held by the Company Principal activities
MEARER HEME EMRERLY aMRERER  AAAREEMEARSL  EERH
directly indirectly
ER ik
DETEERSE Limited liability PRC USD 10,000,000 75% 25% Manufacturing of
BREFLF company equipment and
machines for
maintenance of
automobiles
BT RR BREMAR i 10,000,000 75% 25% BERERTS
AREFLF LEERE
Launch Europe GmbH Limited liability Germany DM50,000 100% = Sales of accessories,
company equipment and
machines for the
automotive
aftermarket
Launch Europe GmbH BRELAH =E 50,00055% 100% - HERERTS
PR
R RS
s Limited liability PRC RMB40,000,000 90% 10% Development,
REBRAH company manufacturing and
sales of equipment for
the automotive
aftermarket
AYITTER BREAAR gl ARH 90% 10% FiE  SEREE
FREERAR 40,000,0007T RERTS L EE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE-ZZT—ZTF+-_A=1+—HILFE

18. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. R—HE N7 2R
Group Company
3] NGl
2010 2009 2010 2009
%5 ZZTHhE “Z-% “EENE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Balance at 1 January B—A—R &% 7,186 9,759 19,110 16,350
Further investment E—SRE
in an associate R—fRl & A7 - 2,760 = 2,760
Share of associate’s results il A=UNG (5,208) (5,333) - -
Provision for impairment BB - - (7,615) -
Balance at 31 December WTZA=+—Hz&H 1,978 7,186 11,495 19,110
Particulars of the associate at 31 December 2010 are as RZZBE—ZTF+-A=+—H  B&EQ
follows: A)Z BT
Place of Percentage of
Registered Fully paid registration interest held by
Name capital capital and operation the Company
8 HMER EKER aMREEnY RAARERREDL
HenERRAE RMB218,500,000 RMB191,257,000 PRC 13.8%
RBERAH
(“SK Launch”)
LETEERRRE AR 218,500,007 ARH191,257,0007C el 13.8%
RERAR
(I'SK Launch))
The associate has a reporting date of 31 December. BE AN zcREBBAT-_RA=4—
E| o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZT—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

18. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. R—EBE QAR 2= (F)

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the board of
directors of SK Launch approved an increase in registered
capital from RMB118,500,000 to RMB218,500,000 and
agreed that the existing shareholders of SK Launch were
committed to inject the additional capital in proportion to their
shareholding. As at 31 December 2009, the investment in the
associate amounting to RMB2,760,000 was fully paid by the
Company. There was no capital injection made during the
year ended 31 December 2010. The remaining unpaid capital
contribution of RMB11,040,000 was recorded as a capital
commitment at 31 December 2010 (2009: RMB11,040,000)
as disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements.

The summarised financial information of the associate

extracted from its management accounts are as follows:

Assets BE
Liabilities afE
Revenue Wz
Loss for the year FREE

e Launch Tech Company Limited SZ=YIH TAERHEAR D B R A 7

BE_ZTAE+_A=+—"HILFE
A SK LaunchEEEH#/EEMER
M AR 118,500,000 STTIE N E A R #
218,500,0007T * ¥ [FE SK Launch i
IR R AR IR S AT AR LL GBI E
ABR RZTENFFT_A="+—
H REBERARAZREREARKE
2,760,000 E AR BIBE I o B
E_TTE+-_A=1+—HILFE
WEELERERNTE - RZT—TF
+ZA=1+—8  #ATARNEEAR
#11,040,000 T (ZZEZNE : AR
11,040,000t ) B 12 & ZN 3 51| Bk (1n
&R B T EE) ©

BERERERE 2 ARES E AR
WARBEMT ¢

2010 2009
—T-TF —TEAF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT

93,657 113,439
10,363 8,604
54,508 53,572
(37,744) (38,651)




19. CLUB MEMBERSHIP

Lifetime club membership, at cost

Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR AR MY T

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE-ZZT—ZTF+-_A=1+—HILFE

Group and Company

KERAT
2010 2009
=S

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTRT

IESHTERE - RRATIER 1,177 1,177

The Group plans to hold this membership for the foreseeable

future.

20. INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods

R
F R dn
SipK

AEEEN A R ERTEUGFE -

20. &
Group Company
SE N

2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-TFE  —EBEFHF T F —TTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETE AR®.TT ARETT
47,207 38,228 35,596 29,139
14,846 8,281 12,991 6,490
34,118 38,091 24,036 33,691
96,171 84,600 72,623 69,320
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B &R T M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-—Z—ZTF+ - A=1+—HIFE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. BEIRE SRR
The fair values of trade receivables are as follows: FEWE SRR AFEIT
Group Company
55 NG
2010 2009 2010 2009

“F-TF "TEAF F-FF CTENA
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTR ARMTL ARMTE ARMTE

Trade receivables FEUE 5 8RR 240,644 252,891 221,318 231,489
Less: provision for B EYCE SR
impairment of BB
trade receivables (15,274) (12,286) (13,077) (11,100)
225,370 240,605 208,241 220,389
The Group’s credit terms are one to six months for its trade AEBHRTEBGRF—EAERZE
customers. The following is the ageing analysis of trade Ef - L TAREZERABMI EKES
receivables, based on the invoice dates, as at 31 December BN —E—ZEE+-A=+—H2ZF
2010: BT
Group Company
== NG|
2010 2009 2010 2009
2= —EENEFE =T F ZTTNF

RMB'0O00 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARBTRE

Within 6 months ~MEAR 88,276 119,874 74,538 101,592
Over 6 months 7ME A LA _E1B
but less than 1 year R—F 63,490 47,870 62,004 47,154
Over 1 year but less —F LA LB
than 2 years DRMF 64,308 72,861 62,403 71,643
Over 2 years LA 9,296 = 9,296 =
225,370 240,605 208,241 220,389
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B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE-ZZT—ZTF+-_A=1+—HILFE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21. EWWE ZRF (&)
The movement in the provision for impairment of trade TLIE B 5 R RO R B VE L Bt e )
receivables is as follows: LN
Group Company
&8 NG|
2010 2009 2010 2009
—T-ZF “TETNE —£-% “TTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFTT ARBTT AREFT
Balance at 1 January R—B—Bz#&8& 12,286 10,363 11,100 9,600
Amount written off MEeHE = (763) - -
Impairment loss charged REEWERATRZ
to the statement of HEEE
comprehensive income 2,988 2,686 1,977 1,500
Balance at 31 December R+ZRA=+—Bz#&&% 15,274 12,286 13,077 11,100

At each reporting date, the Group’s trade receivables were REB—HEH  ANEBZEKE SRR

individually and collectively determined for impairment
purposes. The individually impaired receivables are
recognised based on the credit history of its customers,
indication of financial difficulties, default in payments,
and current market conditions. Consequently, specific
impairment provision was recognised.

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case
the impairment loss is written off against trade receivables
directly. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances, whether determined on individual or collective
basis.

SENEAREEREERME - 2
MEZ RYESRR TR 2 EEEE
MR IR - WRAR - ARER
TR T ARERR o Btk R RIRE 1
o

PEKE SRR ZRERE  ~AEEE
ERNBRERT - BRIFAKREMRERR
Y Bl 5% 3R A REEAR K - B RARUE S
B ERNERE ZRRATMEE - A&
% 3 488 h 1t 2 A B A (R R am (8
iR BRI KR ELEEE)
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZT—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21. BWE SR (&)

REZEHERRETERE ERKES
R BRI DT

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are past due as
at the reporting date but not impaired is as follows:

Group Company
0] NG
2010 2009 2010 2009
—T-TF Z—ETHhFE —ZT-ITF —ZTTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETT ARBTT ARETT ARBTET

Neither past due nor I R HA SR B
impaired 88,276 119,874 74,538 101,592
Overdue within 1 year BHI—FLAT 137,094 120,731 133,703 118,797

225,370 240,605 208,241 220,389

As at 31 December 2010, Company’s and Group’s trade
receivables of RMB74,538,000 and RMB88,276,000
respectively (2009: RMB101,592,000 and
RMB119,874,000) that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default. Trade receivables that were past
due but not impaired related to a number of customers that
the Group had continuing business relationships with these
customers including sales to and settlements from these
customers in general, which in the opinion of the directors
have no indications of default. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

Included in trade receivables are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency
of the entity to which they relate:

R-ZE—ZF+_A=1+—H  ARQ7
RAEE 2 BB EZFERDBIRBARE
74,538,00070 & A R # 88,276,000 7T
(ZEZNF : AR¥101,592,0007C
N AR #119,874,0007T ) + BE 7 1 HA
IMARME - BRAEWEHEREL 2R
£ - EREESERE - BEALE
HRREXEBHER 2R BHAZIE
KB SRR - BRE—RIEETHERF
RZERFZNH  EERBIETR
AR - NEBWERLFEBRITHE
EAEAR o

EE SRR BREATEERINES
BRAMEESENNZERRES
L

Group Company
3] NG|
2010 2009 2010 2009
—T-TF Z—ZBTHFE —T-ITF —ZTTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETT ARBTT ARETT ARBTET

United States dollars ETT
(“US$”) 175,841 161,294 168,587 156,240
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS ER T M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE-ZZT—ZTF+-_A=1+—HILFE

22. BILLS RECEIVABLES 22. EINEE
The fair values of bills receivables are as follows: EWERE A FERT
Group Company
cSJE] NG|
2010 2009 2010 2009
—T—TF —TTHFE —T-TF —TTHF

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT AREBTT ARBTET

Bills receivables aged BRERTE 7~ MEL A LA
within 6 months Z RN EIE 17,371 9,600 16,316 9,600

23. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 23. HitEWRIE - BERTFEN

PREPAYMENTS ;IE
Group Company
5] NS
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-FT&E —FETHE —T-FTF —TTHhE

RVMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AERBTT ARBETE ARETT ARBTE

Deposits Be 375 384 = =
Prepayments TEfFRIE 1,564 8,994 1,236 8,787
Other receivables H fth fE U GRIE 56,777 97,886 53,581 90,074
Software tax refundable AR B R 4,411 4,461 355 355
Value added tax RER 20,864 18,708 20,864 22,960
Dividend receivable FEW — M B A A
from a subsidiary 2B - - 36,000 40,500
83,991 130,433 112,036 162,676
Less: provision for B AN RIER
impairment on H At EUGRIR
prepayments and ZORERAE
other receivables (8,552) (8,401) (8,322) (8,401)

75,439 122,032 103,714 154,275
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B RE AR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZT—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

23. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 23.

PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

The movement in the provision for impairment on

prepayments and other receivables is as follows:

Balance at 1 January
Impairment loss
recognised/(recovered)

Balance at 31 December

H At WK IE

FE ()

BrEREM

hEL At FE WK IR R TR AN BRI HO R EE

BENEEINT
Group Company
- 3E] AR
2010 2009 2010 2009
—ZE-TF “ETTNF —T-F “TENE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFTT AREFTT AREFTT
R—B—Hz &% 8,401 2,497 8,401 2,497
REBREEER/
(BEME) 151 5,904 79 5,904
W+=—A=+—Bz&% 8,552 8,401 8,322 8,401

Other receivables are assessed to be impaired individually

at each reporting date and impairment loss of the Company
and the Group amounting to RMB8,322,000 (2009:
RMB8,401,000) and RMB8,552,000 (2009: RMB8,401,000)
respectively has been made as at 31 December 2010. The

individually impaired receivables are recognised based on

the indication of financial difficulties and default in payments.

Consequently, specific impairment provision was recognised.

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Included in other receivables are advances to the staff of the
Group and the Company which amounted to RMB3,324,000
and RMB3,012,000 respectively (2009: RMB4,765,000
and RMB4,549,000) in aggregate. Such advances are

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

@ Launch Tech Company Limited SZ=YIH TAERHEAR D B R A 7

H b YR IR & 3R B B @B TSR
BRARRRASEZBEBBAR
#8,322000 L(ZZTTNEF : AR
8,401,0007T) & A R #8,552,0007T (=
TTNF : AR¥S,401,00078)E 5 5
N-ZE—ZTFE+-A=+—H#%L - @A
B FE U R IEDR (B 5 AR 7 B B PR # RN #E 0
FIEZ ERIER - At - EHERARR
B - ASBUERZSERITE T
A3 R o

H it EUGRIB R IE RS E R AR R E
BAEZER  BeBEHREARK
3,324,000 7t & A R # 3,012,000 7T (=
ZTENF AR 4,765,000 AR
#£4,549,0007T) ° LELAEBAF AL AR -
BB RAREERMER -



24. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE

25.

26.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE IR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZE—-ZT—ZTF+_—_A=+—HILtFE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Fair value through profit or loss BEATERT AB

— Financial asset held for trading — i ELEZEMEE

In the opinion of the directors, the carrying amount of the
financial asset held for trading approximates to its fair value

as it was acquired close to the reporting date.

The financial asset held for trading was subsequently
disposed after the reporting date.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) 25,

SUBSIDIARIES

As at 31 December 2010, the amounts due are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. As at 31 December
2009, the amounts due were unsecured and except for an
amount of RMB20,000,000 due from a subsidiary which
was interest-bearing at prevailing market rate and repayable
within one year, the balance due from/(to) subsidiaries were
interest-free and repayable on demand.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the
balances approximate their fair value.

AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE 26.

The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

24. RAVEFARSZEHME

E

Group and Company

KERAT
2010 2009
=S
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETRT

10,000 =

EERR BIEHEZEREEZRE
EREANHENRE - REREIHRE R
HAR R -

ZFEHEZ EREERRNHRE BB
BHE -

MR BRER(RHELDH
)

03

AT —TFE+—A=+—H %A
REER  RERREKER  -R=F
TNF+-_A=T—0 BREBEAEAR
#20,000,0007T 2 [ B A B R FRILIRIT
mi@$lJ+u+§ RER—FRNEEIN - M
R/ (RHBARFIA) 2 itk
2%%%&%?%‘04; g o

7

EEAR ZFERERRERRSEA
FEBE

—EBE DX R R
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZT—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

27.

28.

PLEDGED/RESTRICTED BANK
DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2009, the balance represented deposits
in respect of an agreement entered into with a customer
which placed in a designated bank account of the Group and
the Company. Such deposits were available to be used when
the relevant project commenced. Due to the fact that the
project had been commenced, the restricted deposits were
released during the year.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Included in bank and cash balances of the Group and
the Company is RMB319,246,000 and RMB316,875,000
(2009: RMB230,129,000 and RMB227,425,000) of bank
balances denominated in RMB placed with banks in the PRC,
respectively. RMB is not a freely convertible currency. Under
the Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement and Sales and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for foreign currencies through banks that are
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

At the reporting date, the cash and bank balances of the
Group are denominated in RMB of RMB320,813,000
(2009: RMB230,376,000), US$ of RMB33,289,000 (2009:
RMB8,370,000), Euro (“EUR”) of RMB1,160,000 (2009:
RMB3,601,000) and other currencies of RMB1,000 (2009:
RMB1,000).

e Launch Tech Company Limited SZ=YIH TAERHEAR D B R A 7

27.

28.

BER BREBRTER

RZBZNF+_RA=+—H ' &g
FLEE PRI Z s N ASE RA R
AHEESRTTIRP 217K ° ZFHRNIAR
FAIRES PSR - AN IAE ERBNE
B REIERRFRREE -

RERRTEEY

FFARE B RARFRTRIRE AR
DRI AT R EAAREEE 2R
1T 8 A R #319,246,0007C & A R
# 316,875,000 L(ZZEZENF : AR
& 230,129,00 7T &2 A & & 227,425,000
To) o ARBIWIFRT B AR 2B -
AR 1R R B A 2 SN B B A R A R A
& - SELMEETERT  ANEEEE
FRER A EITINERETS 2 IRITIHAR
e I RN o

REEH  ANEBEZES RIBITEH
A AN R #320,813,0007t( — T 11
& AR#230,376,00070) LA A R
sHE - AR 33,289,000t (=TT A
4 AR#¥8,370,0007T) LA TTAHE
AREE1,160,000(ZEZNF - AR
# 3,601,000 70 ) B LA ERA R
1,0007C( =TT NF : AR¥1,0007T)
AE M E¥EHE -



29. TRADE PAYABLES

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE IR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE-ZZT—ZTF+-_A=1+—HILFE

The ageing analysis of trade payables as at 31 December

2010 is as follows:

Within 6 months

Over 6 months but
less than 1 year

Over 1 year but less

than 2 years

NEAR

NEAR E
BAR—%F

—FL
BARME

30. BANK BORROWINGS

Bank loans
Secured
Unsecured

Less: Current portion
due within one
year included under
current liabilities

Non-current portion
included under

non-current liabilities

RITE
BHEA
g

B BRRRE
BERT—F
MBI 2 RE

£

BRRFRGAEE
TZFRBED

20, EHEZRM

R=B—BET=A=1—H  EHE
FEHZRBATT ¢

Group Company
e NG|
2010 2009 2010 2009
T —ETHE —T-TFE —TTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT ARETT ARETT
97,422 82,927 33,309 50,776
4,657 5,082 590 1,180
3,949 868 1,727 122
106,028 88,877 35,626 52,078
30. RITEE
Group Company
SE] NG
2010 2009 2010 2009
—T-TF —TENEF —Z2-% “TTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT ARETTT AREFTT
305,000 280,000 305,000 250,000
1,318 80,856 - 80,000
306,318 360,856 305,000 330,000
(305,393) (360,590) (305,000) (330,000)
925 266 - -
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B RE AR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2010 EHZE—Z

—EEF A=t HILEFE

30. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

30. RITEE ()

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s and the Company’s N-_E—ZFTF+_H=1+—H  K£E
borrowings were repayable as follows: RANR R 2 EEER NI HREE
Group Company
3] NG|
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E2-FTF —EBTENF TITF TTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARKETT ARETET
Within one year —FNR 305,393 360,590 305,000 330,000
In the second year RE—F 264 266 — -
In the third to the fifth year HE=FZ=FHF 661 = — -
306,318 360,856 305,000 330,000

All bank borrowings are repayable in one to five years since
the draw down date. Bank borrowings for the Group of
RMB211,318,000 (2009: RMB310,856,000) and for the
Company of RMB210,000,000 (2009: RMB280,000,000)
bear fixed interest rate from 4.86% to 5.31% (2009: 4.86%
to 7.47%) and from 4.86% to 5.31% (2009: 4.86% to 7.47%)
per annum respectively. The remaining borrowings of the
Group and the Company bear floating rates ranging from
4.86% to 6.95% (2009: 4.78% to 6.34%) per annum.

At 31 December 2010, the banking facilities of certain
subsidiaries and the Company, were secured by land
and buildings of the Group as detailed in notes 13
and 14 and personal guarantee provided by certain
shareholders/directors. Such banking facilities amounted
to RMB708,523,000 (2009: RMB579,310,000) to the
Group and RMB675,000,000 (2009: RMB534,500,000)
to the Company respectively. The Group and the
Company had utilised an amount of RMB306,318,000
(2009: RMB360,856,000) and RMB305,000,000 (2009:
RMB330,000,000) respectively, at 31 December 2010.

G Launch Tech Company Limited SZ=YIH TAERHEAR D B R A 7

ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬂﬁ%bﬂﬁﬁx He—F2R1F
BEE - AEBRARBMEITEES
%Uﬁ}\Eﬁgzﬁ 318,000 C(ZZEZE N
& AR#310,856,00070) M A R
210,000,000 (ZZEZ NG : AR
280,000,0007T ) * 7 Al % [& 7 F F) &=
486EES31E(ZTTNEF : 486E
E747E)R4.86EESI1E(ZZEEN
FA8BEETATE)FE - AEER
ARARINEBREEUN T4.86E£6.95
B(ZZZTNE : 4.78EE6.34E) 2%
B)F AT E o

R-Z—ZTFE+-_A=+—0H  ETH
BARKRANRZBRITHENNEEZ
i EF (18 K14 At ) &
HTRE ESZREZEABRIERE
o REAEBZRITRIEABBARE
708,523,000 (ZZEZ N F : ARM
579,310,0007T) * AR A Z RITHE
Bl & A R #675,000,000T( —EZ 11
& AR¥534,500,0007T) ° R ==
—ZF+-A=+—0 ' AEERAA
A E B A AR 306,318,000 (=
TNEF : AR#360,856,0007T) & A
R # 305,000,000 (ZZEZ 14F : A
FR# 330,000,000 7T) °



Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE-ZT—ZTF+-A=1+—HIFE

30. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 30. SRITIEE (&)
Included in borrowings are the following amounts BEBRETIAREZESEEECE
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency B2 EINy B EHEZ S %R -

31.

of the entity to which they relate:

Group Company
e NG
2010 2009 2010 2009
—T-TF ZTTNF —TITF ZZETNF

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETET

EUR BT 1,318 856 = =
DEFERRED TAX 31. EEBIE
Details of the deferred tax asset recognised and movements REERBEFE 2 EBRELERIEE
during the current and prior years: EFERE
Group Others
£E At
RMB’000
AREBTTT
At 1 January 2009 and R-ZZEZNF—HA—HARK
31 December 2009 —ETNF+ZA=1—H -
Credited to profit or loss for the year ST AFAE 11
At 31 December 2010 R-_T—ZEF+_A=+—H 11

Annual Report 2010 =& —ZTEE#f e



Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZT—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

31. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 31. EEBIE (&)
At the reporting date, the Group’s unused tax losses available RREH - AEBRRSAHIEERT]
for offset against future profits, not recognised as deferred WEHRRAE - THIESELEHESE
tax asset, is analysed as follows: E o T
2010 2009
—ET-TF —EENEF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TRT

Unused tax losses REATIAEE 194,758 228,386
The deferred tax asset is not recognised as it is uncertain FA I R BETETE R 2R B 75 FE Rt i ) AT
whether future taxable profit will be available for utilising the FRRFBBER - Bt RERIETER
accumulated tax losses. Under the current tax legislation in REEME - BBRBIRITHREEN - B
the PRC, the tax losses can be carried forward for five years BEERELEBEZ FREER
from the year when the corresponding loss was incurred. F o
As at 31 December 2010, the Group and the Company did RZE—ZE+_A=+—H A5H
not have material unprovided deferred tax liabilities (2009: RARRW B AR CIEERIAE
Nil). B(ZEZENF : &) °
32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. 7
Number of shares Registered,
RAYE issued
Domestic and and fully paid
unlisted foreign shares HShares &t B&1T
RER A ETHNER HR REY
‘000 ‘000 RMB’000
T TH AREFT
Share capital of RMBO.10 each  BRREEA R 0.10 7.2 RA 330,000 228,000 55,800
Issue of H Shares BITHRR - 45,600 4,560
At 31 December 2009 and 2010 R=EZNFR-F-FF+-_A=+—H 330,000 273,600 60,360

@ Launch Tech Company Limited SZ=YIH TAERHEAR D B R A 7
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B RE IR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE-ZZT—ZTF+-_A=1+—HILFE

32. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(@)

Except for the currency in which dividends are paid
and the restrictions as to whether the shareholders can
be PRC investors or foreign investor, domestic and
unlisted foreign shares and H Shares rank pari passu in

all respects with each other.

Pursuant to a special resolution of the Company
passed on 19 April 2010, every ten domestic and
unlisted foreign shares and H Shares of RMBO0.1 each
of the Company was approved to consolidate into
one consolidated share of RMB1 each (the “Shares
Consolidation”). The Shares Consolidation was
subsequently effective on 15 February 2011.

As a result of the Shares Consolidation, the registered,
issued and fully paid share capital of the Company
became RMB60,360,000 divided into 33,000,000
domestic and unlisted foreign shares per RMB1 each
and 27,360,000 H Shares per RMB1 each.

33. RESERVES

(a)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the financial statements. Nature and purpose
of the statutory surplus reserve, public welfare fund and

retained profits are explained in note (b) below.

32. R4 (48)

@)

BT R 2 B N2 & IR il A%
RRTEREENIBERESE
5h - RE -~ R EMIMNERBEHAR
EZTEZEARSHELRS

BEBEARRR T —ZTFWA
THBEBEN —BFRIRZER
BTEREREEARK0N T
A3 3F E TR SMNBD B H AR A £
EHR—REREEARE T
Zavtit ([R;E 1) o B
EHERR _FT——F_A+HA
BAR -

BRERHOEH AREIZE
AMEBETHERAZE A A
R #60,360,0007T ' » #F &
33,000,000/% & Ik E B A R #&
17m 2 A M 3E E B INIR 9 K
27,360,000 i% & B B A K% 1
ToZ HBRRR S ©

33. f#fE

(@)

e

AEBZFBHEEUNRAFER
BEFEZRHERBZ27INTB
BRIFAEDEDRERA - 0&
EREE - Re® RIREENZ
HEE K A T XY RE (o) Eo -
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B R T MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZT—ZFTF+_A=1+—HILFE

33. RESERVES (Continued) 33. & (&)
(b) Company (b) 2RAF
Statutory
Share surplus Public Retained
premium reserve  welfare fund profits Total
kitif EEAES NoE A REEH fzt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT AEETT AEETT ARETT ARBTT

At 1 January 2009 RZZENE-A-A 284210 19,380 19,380 1,000 323970
Disapproval of 2008 REMEZ"SE)\FEE

proposed final dvidend LRERE - - - 12,072 12072
Profit for the year EREH - - - 16,957 16,957
2000 proposed final dvidend ~ ~EENFREAHRE - - - (18,108) (18,108)

At 31 December 2009 and REEENFT-A=1-H

1 January 2010 k=5-2F-f-A 284,210 19,380 19,380 11,921 334,891

Profitfor the year RERRT - - - 57,391 57,391

At 31 December 2010 R-E-FE+ZA=1-A 284,210 19,380 19,380 69,312 392,082

Notes: B eE -

(i) Share premium (i) BRAD R E
Share premium is the excess of the proceeds received over BB TIARR RIS AR BT
the nominal value of the shares of the Company issued at a RAEES  MBRETROER
premium, less the amount of expenses incurred in connection 1% ERHEEZER -

with the issue of the shares.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE=—ZT—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

33. RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Company (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Statutory surplus reserve

The Company’s Articles of Association requires the
appropriation of 10% of profit after income tax each year to
the statutory surplus reserve until the balance reaches 50%
of the registered share capital. According to the provision
of the Company’s Articles of Association, under normal
circumstances, the statutory surplus reserve shall only be
used for making up losses, capitalisation into share capital and
expansion of the Company’s production and operation. For the
capitalisation of statutory surplus reserve into share capital, the
remaining amount of such reserve shall not be less than 25%
of the registered share capital. The transfer to the statutory
surplus reserve is based on the net profit in the financial
statements prepared under PRC accounting standards.

Public welfare fund

Public welfare fund represents the appropriation of profit after
income tax according to the requirements of the Company’s
Articles of Association and the PRC Company Law. According
to the requirements, the Company shall make allocation from
profit after income tax at the rate of 5% to 10% to the public
welfare fund. The public welfare fund can only be utilised
on capital items for employees’ collective welfare. Individual
employees only have the right to use these facilities, the titles
to which will remain with the Company. The public welfare fund
forms part of the shareholders’ equity but is not distributable
other than in liquidation. The transfer to the public welfare fund
was based on the net profit in the financial statements prepared
under PRC accounting standards in the past. However,
there is no longer statutory requirement for appropriation and
therefore, no appropriation is made for the current year. The
appropriation is subject to the shareholders’ approval in the
annual shareholders meeting of the Company.

Retained profits

The reserve available for distribution to shareholders is based
on the lower of the aggregate amount of profit after income tax
for the year and retained profits brought forward determined
under PRC accounting regulations and that determined under
Hong Kong generally accepted accounting principles after
deduction of the current year’s appropriations to the statutory
surplus reserve and public welfare fund.

33. f#E (&)

nE (&)

B

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(%)

EEDEE
ARBRAIBEREFFRERTL
BMZ10%ERREEATES B
EHMETEMRAZ 50% AL
BREARARARERZAE  E—
RIERT DEEAESERBNE
HER  BREAERARERA
RAIZHEERER - FHEE ATE
SEAREAERAMS @ ZFEE
RIEE 2 FIBRFIATS DR EMAR
K2 26% ° EERTEE 2 EBTHIA
RIET B & ERI PRS2 B 75
KPR R

=
REEHEBEARFARNEERT
BRREBBERRARET - R
BEMMRE - ARARANERAE
BEEHN 2 6% E10% HH AN
& RS ERARE TEEET

RzmAHE - ER8 TEA#EER
LIRS 28R sk P R
BRARE - RAEREHRARZ A
D - RIERIEDIR ° A
SZEBDHUARBEEZ PEEE
R R PTAm B2 B TSk i 2 A E
REXE o N - AR BEEERTE
AR SRS - Fb ARNF R EAEH
D o AEAFRRNARREZEK
RBEFRG LA -

k>

]

N K

\

RE =T

AES KT RR 2 TR ET B
B RERREEEERBRA S
FHERIEEE 2 AN E 2 BB R m T
BERZFTEEEN 2 BRAR
BERE)  THBRAFEERES
FEEREERATE L SHEH ©
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B R T MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZT—ZFTF+_A=1+—HILFE

34. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 34, KREHNEAIE
As at 31 December 2010, the Group and the Company had RZZE—ZF+-A=1+—H ~5H
commitments for future minimum lease payments in respect R AR RIARAE N AT REE 2 A 2 4T+
of land and buildings under non-cancellable operating leases i RAEFER NFHRS A HEZ &
which fall due as follows: RARAV AT -
Group Company
&= NG|
2010 2009 2010 2009
—T-F —TENGE T TF ZETNF

RVMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT AREBETT ARETRT

Within one year —FR 2,211 2,191 1,008 852
In the second year E_FEFERF

to fifth year 4,851 5,546 197 190
After the fifth year REFE 1,450 3,243 - -

8,512 10,980 1,205 1,042

The Group leases a number of properties under operating AEBERBEEHOEELIEYE -
leases. The leases run for an initial period of one to seven MNP FHRE—FELF(ZZE
(2009: one to seven) years, with an option to renew the NE: —FE2LF)  AEEREEFE
lease and renegotiate the terms at the expiry date or at F HHAAGEEEEHNEL RN EE
dates as mutually agreed between the Group and respective Bt EEHE 2 B HEFRERE P E
landlords/lessors. The lease payments are fixed and no Ko ATV EE REEARB A
arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental NFRETSLLHE ©
payments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZE—-ZT—ZTF+_—_A=+—HILtFE

35. FUTURE OPERATING LEASE 35. RRKEHNZH

ARRANGEMENTS
As at 31 December 2010, the Group and the Company had RIE—FF+-_H=+—H  K~&EE
future aggregate minimum lease receipts in respect of land AR BB RE ARG 2 25
and buildings under non-cancellable operating leases as i REF R A T F EUER 2 KR
follows: LU

Group Company

SE] NG

2010 2009 2010 2009

—T-TF —FEINE -T-TF —FTINS
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETE ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR

Within one year —FR 9,581 7,791 12,929 11,139
In the second year E_FEFRF
to fifth year 5,652 11,207 5,626 17,976
15,183 18,998 18,555 29,115
The Group and the Company leases certain portion of the REERARBRBLEERLY (WP FE
buildings (note 13) under operating lease arrangements HAE—FZNF(ZTTNF : —FZF
which run for an initial period of one to four (2009: one to W) HEETEFES (HHFE13) o 1t
four) years. The terms of the leases generally also require the FMA 2GR —MRETAAAME AR
tenants to pay security deposits. There is no arrangement of He o WEGHEIAERHES 228k -

contingent rental receivables.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—T—ZFF+_A=1+—HILFE

36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure
contracted but not
provided for in the
financial statements:
— expenditures on

construction-
in-progress
— acquisition of plant
and equipment
— capital injection to
an associate

EEAERR
MR TERE L
BARRX

—HERIEMX

— BB Nk

— [ —faHE & A )
TR

e Launch Tech Company Limited J#3IM TTAERHE AR DB R A A

36. EARKIE
Group Company
£ NG
2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-TF _TTAF —T-TF _TTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARETET ARETT ARETT
15,249 16,272 14,920 16,272
- 1,520 - 1,520
11,040 11,040 11,040 11,040
26,289 28,832 25,960 28,832
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE-ZZT—ZTF+-_A=1+—HILFE

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme approved
by a resolution of the shareholders of the Company dated 21
March 2002 (the “Share Option Scheme”), the Company, for
the purpose of encouraging the participants to perform their
best in achieving the goals of the Group, may grant options
to employees including any directors of the Company or its
subsidiaries to subscribe for the H Shares in the Company.
An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 28
days from the date of offer, and a consideration of RMB1.00
is payable by each of the participants on acceptance of the
grant of options. The Share Option Scheme will remain valid
for a period of ten years commencing on 21 March 2002.
An option may be exercised at any time during a period to
be notified by the directors of the Company to each grantee
provided that the period within which the option must be
exercised shall be not less than two years and not more than
10 years from the date of grant. The subscription price for H
Shares under the Share Option Scheme will be determined
by the directors and notified to each grantee and will be no
less than the highest of (a) the closing price of the H Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date of grant, which must be a business day; (b) the
average closing price of the H Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal
value of a H Share.

37. BRESTE

BIBEERAGRRER_ZZT_F=H
ZH—BZAREMBACARAER
RS ([FERERTE])  AAF AR
BoHEEREREER AL BIZ
AAEE (BIEARARHIENB AR Z
FRZESE) R TERE  URBEAQF
ZHER - BR2EEEEME THEARE
ZEZVNEREZASET TN \BR
B B TREIRERETABIN
KEARB100T - BRENEZE
MER —EE—F= A —t+—Hi5t5A
H+F - GEREATRAAREZESR
MPEBERAZFERABERTE @ EE
ARBEZR T1TE 2 R EAR B 2 B ABRT T
ARERRE RRNTF o BERERT SR
THR RBERRESETRBAX
BA - REBETSERUAT=EZ2&5
& QEREEREBH(WERZXR)
HEE R B R it 2 B3R AT 2 Wi fE
(o) BER HEREB AT AL %A H
AR B 22 BT B 2k FT 81 2 SE UL TR A(E
K (HEZEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZT—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

37. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 37. BIR#ESHE (F&)

However, for employees who are PRC nationals and have
taken up any options to subscribe for the Company’s H

Shares, they shall not be entitled to exercise the options until:

(i) The current restrictions imposed by the relevant PRC
laws and regulations restricting PRC nationals from
subscribing for and dealing in H Shares or any laws and
regulations with similar effects have been abolished or

removed; and

(i)  The China Securities Regulatory Commission or other
relevant government authorities in the PRC have
approved the new issue of H Shares upon the exercise
of any options which may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme.

The total number of H Shares subject to the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes must not,
in aggregate, exceed 30% of issued H Shares of the
Company in issue from time to time. The total number of H
Shares available for issue under options granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other schemes, must not in
aggregate, exceed 10% of the number of H Shares of the
Company in issue from time to time. The Company may seek
approval from shareholders in general meeting for renewing
the 10% limit or for granting further options beyond the 10%
limit, provided that the options in excess of the 10% limit
are granted only to participants specifically identified by the

Company before such approval is sought.

No employee of the Company or its subsidiaries shall be
granted an option which, if all the options granted to the
employee (including both exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period up to the date of grant, shall not

exceed 1% of the H Shares in issue at the date of grant.

No option has been granted by the Company under the
Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

e Launch Tech Company Limited JEYITTAF R B R A7)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE IR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE-ZZT—ZTF+-_A=1+—HILFE

RETIREMENT PLANS

As stipulated by the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its
employees in the PRC. The Group is required to contribute
8.0% to 22.5% of the basic salaries of its employees to the
retirement plans, and has no further obligation for the actual
payment of the previous or post retirement benefits. The
relevant state-sponsored retirement plans are responsible for
the entire present obligation to retired employees.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The following transactions were carried out with a related
party:

Sales to an associate

Sales to an associate were conducted in the normal course
of business at prices and terms not less than those charged
to and contracted with other third party customers of the
Group.

The directors are of the opinion that the key management
personnel were the directors and the supervisors of the
Company and certain highest paid employees, details of

whose emoluments are set out in note 7.

The Group did not enter into any material related party
transactions during the year other than as disclosed above
and elsewhere in the financial statements.

HET HBER

38.

39.

l

RKETE

REBEPEDERMEHZRE - AREA
RETEESREIRE I 2 BIRFTEIH
K AREAXNBITEARFHE8.0%
£22.5% 2 G BIER/EBRNGTE 2K -
HE B 75 ST (TR IRBT IR AR 2 B
R o BRZBREBRKTEIANEH
BB TAEMARITRE

BEREALZRS

ATRZBERMBEATETZIRS ¢

2010 2009
—EF—=F —EFTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
828 1,548

HE T —HBERRELERERBKBIE
o RTERN Y E R AR R E A E =
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZT—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 40. BFISRE R EE R B

POLICIES

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks such as
market risk (including foreign currency risk and interest rate
risk), liquidity risk and credit risk, which result from both its

operating and investing activities.

The Group does not have written risk management
policies and guidelines. However, the board of directors
meets periodically to analyse and formulate strategies to
manage the Group’s exposure to these risks. Generally, the
Group employs a conservative strategy regarding its risk
management. The overall objectives in managing financial
risks focus on securing the Group’s short to medium term
cash flows by minimising its exposure to financial markets.
The Group does not hold any derivative financial instruments

for speculative purpose.

The Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are set out

in note 2.14 and 2.20 to the financial statements respectively.

() Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group and the Company have no significant interest
bearing assets apart from cash and bank deposits.
The Group and the Company currently have bank
borrowings with fixed and floating interest rates as
disclosed in note 30.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2010 EHZE—=

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2010, the Group and the Company
were exposed to changes in market interest rates
through their bank deposits and borrowings, which
are subject to variable interest rates. The following
table illustrates the sensitivity of the net result for the
year and equity to a reasonably possible change in
interest rates of +1% and —1% (2009: +1 and-1%),
with effect from the beginning of the year. These
changes are considered to be reasonably possible
based on observation of current market conditions.
The calculations are based on the Group’s and the
Company’s bank deposits and borrowings held at each
reporting date. All other variables are held constant.

Group
8

B RE IR AR AT

—ZE+ A=t RALFE

40. BT E B B IR RIBR (48)

(i)

FIZ=E e (48)
BB
R=F—FF+=A=+-A
AREEAAFEBERGE
T/\&fﬁggkj‘%mi%ﬂ—g—mymﬂ

 REAEFRTE o FRH
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- ﬂﬁx%XE%EMﬁﬁﬁ

MIEEEDL « PrA E M #F
%f%%%?\g% o

Company

>
=l

2010 2010 2009 2009 2010 2010 2009 2009
ST R CER-TE CEBTNE CZENE ST TF CT-TE _RTHE _RINE
+1% -1% +1% -1% +1% -1% +1% -1%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL ARBTL ARETR ARBTL ARBTLT ARETT ARMTL ARBTT

Net profit/(loss) for ~EEF
the year and w5l (E8)
retained eamings RIRB AR 493 (493) (175) 175 450 (450) (165) 165
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 EHZE—Z

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
POLICIES (Continued)

(ii)

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in foreign
currency exchange rates relates primarily to certain
trade receivables, certain cash and cash equivalents
and certain bank borrowings in currencies other than
the functional currency of RMB.

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and Germany.
The functional currency of the Company and it
subsidiaries are mainly RMB and EUR with certain
transactions being settled in US$ and EUR. However,
the Group mainly exposes to foreign currency risk
arising from the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
denominated in US$.

The overall net exposure in respect of the carrying
amount of the Group’s and Company’s foreign
currency denominated financial assets and liabilities in

—EEF A=t HILEFE

B S R B B T R BUK (48

(ii)

SN [\ B2
SMNERBIERERESMEH S
BTAZRAFERKRRRERE
HERE) < Ak - AEBRINE

EXEFHFEzMHER T8
A EE AREIAINEED)
BEXETREESERR  ETHR
T RBRSEFBYRE TRITEE
1HRE °

AEEBETETHEREREE -
ARARRENBRAGB ZEE
MEIBEAARERBIT  BTX

SLAETRETESR Al - &
EEFZMmEAREBUETTIE
ZeREERABEE ZINER

a0 o
ZoN

NEBRAATAINESEZ &
MEEMBEZEMFE(ER
U [E R & A A R ) By

net position, translated into RMB at the closing rate, are ZEEERERINT
as follows:
Group Company
&H NG|
2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-TF _TTHhE _—T-TF _TTHhF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETET
Net financial assets & @& EF1E
Us$ ETT 198,130 169,549 200,142 203,481
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE-ZZT—ZTF+-_A=1+—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 40. IR EE R BER (48)

POLICIES (Continued)

(i)  Foreign currency risk (Continued) (i) SNERERR ()
Sensitivity analysis R VE T
A 5% strengthening/weakening of RMB against US$ MR ABREEER  ARBHEZET
as at the respective reporting dates would (decrease)/ #Eog /H55% 0 BRETE B R
increase the profit after income tax (due to changes MEREBEENBEZAYF
in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities) by BEEE) ORd) EmzSEEH
the amount shown below. This analysis has been IR FIN © D7 T3 ASNE FE
determined based on the assumed percentages KA REFEEVNEHEAREZA D
changes in foreign currency exchange rates taking thZE B RN EEFERTNE S
place at the beginning of the financial year and held HRETFE  IMRRATAEEMMEE
constant throughout the year. It also assumes that (RFRIRF =) s T -

all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant.

Increase/ Increase/(Decrease) in profit for
(Decrease) the year and retained earnings
120, Opid) REEFERREBEFIG I, CRD)
Group Company
%5 N
2010 2009 2010 2009

—T-TF —TENFE —T-TF —TTNAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETR

If RMB strengthen 20 A R 5 38858

against US$ 5% (9,907) (8,477) (10,007) (10,174)
IfRMB weaken — MIAREE H 285
against US$ (5%) 9,907 8,477 10,007 10,174
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSRRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZT—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
POLICIES (Continued)

(iii) Credit risk

40. I E R EIE KRB (8)

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a

financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation

under the terms of the financial instrument and cause

a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s exposure

to credit risk mainly arises from granting credit to

customers in the ordinary course of its operations.

The Group’s and the Company’s maximum exposure

to credit risk on recognised financial assets are

limited to the carrying amount at the reporting date as

summarised below:

Classes of financial assets & Fi & E4AR!
- carrying amount —EEE

Group

L 3]
2010
e 242
RMB'000
ARBFT

(iii)

SE R
EERRBESRITIAZHFIR
EREMTAZEGRETEL
WEHRAREBERF I E B Z
@ AEBEZEERBREZENRA
H—REBBIETFETEPZE
o

AEERARRBEHAEEREE
BEZESEERRBIAGERZ
FREEAR - BT

Company
]
2009 2010 2009
ZZTNE —Zz-Z —EENE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETFT ARETFT

Trade and bills receivables RN E 5B RIEWRE 242,741 250,205 204,557 229,989
Other receivables Hib R B R RS

and deposits 48,600 89,869 81,259 122,173
Amount due —HHBARRK

from a subsidiary - - 32,085 20,000
Amount due from —HBERARRK

an associate 108 374 87 353
Pledged/Restricted BER/BRA

bank deposits BITER - 675 - 675
Cash and bank balances 3R & RiR1T45 355,263 242,348 349,981 235,662

646,712 583,471 687,969 608,852
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE IR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE-ZZT—ZTF+-_A=1+—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
POLICIES (Continued)

(iii)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on pledged/restricted bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings.

It is the Group’s policy that receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis. The allowance for
impairment has been made to reduce the exposure
to the credit risk in relation to the receivables. Other
than this there are no significant concentrations of
credit risk within the Group in relation to other financial
assets. None of the financial assets of the Group and
the Company are secured by collateral or other credit
enhancements.

See note 21 to these financial statements for further
details of the Group’s exposures to credit risk on trade
receivables.

40. BT E B B IR RIBR (48)

(iii)

FERR (8)
BEABRHRTERERES
EB2EEMZEERRAR
RARBFTHREASERN
A EHERTT o

REE 2 K BRI RS
e BREBBESHELURIE
FRYNIRZ EERR - Btz
S AEBYBEBEMESRE
EFERRZERESR - AEE
KANRE & B EEMREIAEA
ek E A E EIE R M EIEAR o

BRAEBEEREZEREER
R HE—HFE BRI
MmEMIE21 ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE AR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2010 EHZE—Z

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEM
POLICIES (Continued)

—EEF A=t HILEFE

ENT AND

(iv)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be
able to meet its obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. The Group is exposed to liquidity risk
in respect of settlement of trade payables and its
financing obligations, and also in respect of its cash
flow management. The Group exercised liquidity risk
management policy by maintaining sufficient cash level
and the availability of adequate amount of committed
credit facilities.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and readily realisable marketable
securities and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term. The
remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date
of the Group’s and the Company’s non-derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based
on rates current at the reporting date) and the earliest
date the Group and the Company can be required to

pay.

@ Launch Tech Company Limited SZ=YIH TAERHEAR D B R A 7
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(iv)

RENE £
MENE R TIEAREEREER

BRXNRSREBEREELN
ABTTERAGERBREZAR
B - ARERBERMNE SR
RREMBEEARREREE
EmAZRBESER - AEME
HERAKFEZRE REAGHE
ERHZBE  HITRDEZRE
P EIRHR

AEBNBRRAEDREEHRDY
BeFmR  WETFTERIH
REFTERR S RAIBERZERE
BEFNEE URTESEE
BREACEAZESTEE B
NEHERRRARSEST K
$%I&$“7#ﬁ$$ﬁﬁﬁ

REE BEER TS DB ER
ﬂ%é%*%ﬁﬁ%m&@%ﬁ
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R)RAEEREFEX NN
FHE-



40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

POLICIES (Continued)
(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued)

2010

Carrying undiscounted

amount

FasHE
RMB000

AEBTT

Tradepayables  EREAES 106028
Other payablesand £ ftfERZ08

acoued charges  REFER 30,090
Bankhorrowings ~ TEE 306,318

-1V
/\ ‘

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE-T—TF+_A=1+—HILFE

. B EREERBUR (F)

nRBE R (&)
—E-TF
Company
G

Total Inthe
contractual ~ Within one Inthe  third year
Carrying undiscounted ~ year oron second tothe
cashfow  demand year fithyear
AORER  R-ER £=7

i S R S i

RMB'00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT ARMTL ARETR

35626 3562 = =

19932 19932 = =
309,359 309,359 = =

442,39

364917 364917 = -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B &R T M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZT—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
POLICIES (Continued)

(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued)

2009
Group
&8
Total
contractual  Within one In the

Carrying undiscounted ~ year oron second
amount  cashfow  demand year

SRS R-ER

40. I E R EIE KRB (8)

—ETNEF
Company
27
Inthe Total Inthe
third year contractual ~ Within one Inthe  third year
tothe  Camying undiscounted year oron second tothe
fifth year amount  cashfow  demand year fitth year

AUAER  R-FR

FESE HelnE AN FoF FSERRF BEeR ROERE  URIB  A0F BEEDF

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AE¥TT ARETR ARETL ARETR

Tradepayables  EFESE: 88877 88877 88877 -
Other payablesand ~ EHEFUER

acorued charges  fERTER 19789 19789 19,789 -
Bankborrowings ~ ${7fEE 360856 374014 373703 311

RMBOOO ~ RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEBTT ARETR ARETR ARKTR ARETR ARETR
- D208 52018 52018 = =

- 14706 14706 14,706 = =
- 330000 338757 338,767 = =

469,522 482,680 482,369 3

306,784 405,541 406,041 = =

(v) Fair value measurement

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities are not materially different from
their carrying amounts because of the immediate
or short term maturity of these financial assets and
liabilities. The carrying amount of the non-current
portion of borrowings approximates its fair value since
the directors consider that their interest rates are
close to the prevailing market rates of similar financial
instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RE IR AR AT

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE-ZZT—ZTF+-_A=1+—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The following table presents financial asset measured
at fair value in the statement of financial position in
accordance with the fair value hierarchy. The hierarchy
groups financial assets into three levels of the fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures which is determined based on the relative
reliability of significant inputs used in measuring the fair
value of these financial assets. The fair value hierarchy

has the following levels:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets and liabilities;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly

(i.e. derived from prices); and

= Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

40. BT E B B IR RIBR (48)

(v)

DFE ()
TREJNBRBE R FERBINI B
ARAERANARFEFEZERE
E- - cREERBAEZSTER
BERATEMABEABAREZ
BRI EREAN D R=EXAFE
BA(EERBEMBRELER
FTREBMTE : BE) -

- B4 BEAEERAMR
RIERTE 2 BB GRIEHE

®);

- B F-AABER
BUIRLEEXRBEHERE
(BB S AEZ (BREE
R)ERMSBARE X

- FZR UEUBEMRSB
MmSEE (TR BREE)
REZEEXNBEBAK
B
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B &R T M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZT—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 40. IR EERBUER (48)
POLICIES (Continued)
(v)  Fair value measurement (Continued) v) 2FEGE)
The financial asset measured at fair value in the MR ERANARFEAEZE
consolidated statement of financial position is grouped MEED BATRFERA

into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

As at 31 December 2010 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R-ZE—ZFF+_A=+—H E— =Rt E=MR

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETET

Financial asset held for trading #H{ERXR S 2 & REE - 10,000 -
The financial instrument entered into by the Group is AEEFV 2B TEWERIE
not traded on active markets. The fair value of such TEEZ TG WEEHZATE
contract is estimated using a valuation technique that VAZE #0050 ] R 5R « T IS U
maximises the use of observable market inputs e.g. (MEERFR(E_R)) &AL
market currency and interest rates (Level 2). mihar o

(vi) Summary of financial assets and liabilities by (i) ZEREsERMEENEBHME
category
The carrying amounts presented in the statement of R IEAR 2R 2 51 2 AR <& 58 61
financial position related to following categories of TH&cMmEENBBEZHERNE

=
o

B2EWE214 %220 T
SR T AERINAEEREET
instruments affects their subsequent measurement. ERERE o

financial assets and liabilities: See notes 2.14 and 2.20

HY
+d

for explanations about how the category of financial
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS ER T M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE-ZZT—ZTF+-_A=1+—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
POLICIES (Continued)

40. M EREERBER (&)

(vi) Summary of financial assets and liabilities by (vi) RERZSERMEEREEHNE
category (Continued) (#&)
Group Company
&= N
2010 2009 2010 2009
—T-TF “TETNE —Z£-% “ZTNE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT ARETT ARETT
Financial assets EHEE
Cash and cash equivalents & RIREEEY 355,263 242,348 349,981 235,662
Fair value through BRATEFA
profit or loss BaREL
Held for trading RHEHE 10,000 - 10,000 -
Loan and receivables ER R EK IR
Trade receivables KB ZER 225,370 240,605 208,241 220,389
Bills receivables [ERZE 17,371 9,600 16,316 9,600
Other receivables HipEWFIAR RS
and deposits 48,600 89,869 81,259 122,173
Amount due from
a subsidiary —FRRBRARRK - - 32,085 20,000
Amount due from
an associate —fEE D RIRR 108 374 87 353
Pledged/Restricted BER/BRA
bank deposits BRI - 675 = 675
656,712 583,471 697,969 608,852
Financial liabilties TR AT R
at amortised cost EHEE
Trade payables BB SRR 106,028 88,877 35,626 52,078
Other payables and Hi e 308
accrued charges RIEFTER 30,050 19,789 19,932 14,706
Bank borrowings RITIRE 306,318 360,856 305,000 330,000
442 396 469,522 360,558 396,784
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R T MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HEZZT—ZFTF+_A=1+—HILFE

41. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND
PROCEDURES

The Group’s capital management objectives are:

(i) to ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going

concern;
(i)  to provide an adequate return to shareholders;
(i)  to support the Group’s sustainable growth; and

(iv)  to provide capital for the purpose of potential mergers

and acquisitions.

The Group sets the amount of equity capital in proportion to
its overall financing structure. The Group manages the capital
structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes
in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the

underlying assets.

@ Launch Tech Company Limited 73T TAERHEAR (D B R A T
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R TR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HE=—ZT—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

41. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND 4. EXEBBEREER (&)
PROCEDURES (Continued)

The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at the reporting date NEE B R EEFAZRERLERANT
was as follows:
2010 2009
—T—F —ETTNF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETE ARBTT

(Restated)
(&E5)
Current liabilities REEE

Trade payables FERNE S RN 106,028 88,877
Other payables and accrued charges Hb T sa R ERT & A 30,050 19,789
Bank borrowings RITEE 305,393 360,590
441,471 469,256

Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Bank borrowings RITEE 925 266
Total debt #afEIa 442,396 469,522
Add: Proposed dividend in B A = 18,108
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BeRREEEY (355,263) (242,348)
Net debt FEIR 87,133 245,282
Total equity B 654,164 566,848
Less: Proposed dividend B EERE - (18,108)
Adjusted capital FEEEZ SN 654,164 548,740
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio ERERREES SN S 13% 45%
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Financial Summary

MEEE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Research and development expenses
Other operating expenses

Finance costs

Share of results of an associate

Gain on deemed disposal of
interest in an associate

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Dividends

Earnings per share for profit
attributable to owners
of the Company
- Basic

Total assets
Total liabilities

Shareholder’s equity

@ Launch Tech Company Limited JEYITTAF R B R A7)

i
HEMKA

7

At
HERX
THER
i34
AMEERY
PR
il
NTES
RIEHE—
DAl Wan

BR AR S BUAT A
FisHit

REERT
B8

EXNGE TP
L RER

—EX

BEE
BaE

BRRER

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
“T-%F CZEEHNFE  CZEEN\F TR HF  ZEENF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETR  ARETR
661,114 462,440 438,554 412,463 304,211
(383,442) (257,149) (229,196) (183,766) (141,283)
277,672 205,291 209,358 228,697 162,928
37,742 36,335 29,184 23,650 19,831
(66,061) (59,305) (71,869 (74,284) (64,909)
(64,499) (63,449) (61,346) (44,582) (37,708
(27,744) (20,297) (17,212) (16,027) (12,853)
(17,619) (15,784) (38,095) (30,087 (19,085)
(16,883) (20,054) (26,973) (23,166) (8,147
(5,208) (5,333) (7,121) (2,753) (961)

- - 4,244 - -

117,400 67,404 20,170 61,448 39,096
(12,308) (5,359) (7,339) (101) 2,033
105,092 62,051 12,831 61,347 41,129

- 18,108 12,072 30,180 19,530

RMB RMB RVB RMB RMB
ARE ARE ARE ARE ARE
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(=51) (=51) (=51 (=51)

1.74 1.03 0.21 1.09 0.74

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
“T-%F% ZEENE ZEE)N\E ZTTHF e NS
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETT  ARETRT ARETT ARETR  ARETR
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(e=51) (=51 (=51 (=51)

1,118,396 1,036,386 918,674 962,917 777,301
(464,232) (469,538) (414,085) (440,856) (359,639)
654,164 566,848 504,609 522,061 417,662




NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an Annual General Meeting of
Launch Tech Company Limited (the “Company”) will be held at the
conference room, 9th Floor, Office Block, Launch Industrial Park,
North of Wuhe Road, Banxuegang, Longgang District, Shenzhen,
the PRC at 11:00 a.m. on 26 April 2011 (Tuesday) for the following
purposes:

To pass the following matters as ordinary resolutions:

1. To consider and pass the Directors’ Report for the year
2010;

2. To consider and pass the Supervisory Committee’s
Report for the year 2010;

3. To consider and pass the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year 2010;

4. To consider and pass plans to re-appoint BDO Limited
as independent auditor of the Company for the year
2011 and to authorise the board of Directors to fix their
remunerations;

5. To handle any other matters.

ZEE  RImTERKBRNBERAR (A

REDEER_Z——FHA -+ B (EH
) EF T -RIEREFBERYITREERIRE
MIXRAMAEIETATERRAENE
EREARRRBFAG - #UAMHT TIIFE
18

N RIRZRFBIBAIA NFIE

1. BRLBBEARR T —ZTFE
EFgWmeE

2. BULMBEAT-F-TFE
EERYLE

3. BRLBBANAREKBAA
—E-TEEZEBREEANY
W

4. BRAUBRERBTELGERRS
BN EBAAR AR HEARRT
T FEBYZHBENLEE
EFTEREEMESHIER

5. REEMEMER-
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II. To pass the following matters as special resolution:

1. To consider and resolve that, subject to the approval of
China Securities Regulatory Commission and/or other
relevant statutory authorities in the People’s Republic
of China and/or the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited for the proposed allotment and issue of new H
shares and/or domestic shares, the board of Directors
be authorised:

(@ toissue and/or place H shares and/or domestic
Shares within a period of 12 months from the
date of this resolution, provided that the total
number of H shares and/or domestic shares to
be placed and/or issued shall not exceed 20%
(the “20% Limit") of the number of H shares and/
or domestic shares of the Company in issue
respectively;

(b)  subject to the 20% Limit, to decide the number
of H shares and/or domestic shares to be placed
and/or issued and to deal with any matter arising
from or related to the placing or issue of the new
shares mentioned above;

e Launch Tech Company Limited &I T TAEEHZ A B BR A7)
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to amend, in accordance with the increase in
registered capital of the Company, the relevant
articles contained in the Articles of Association in
relation to the registered capital of the Company
and any other articles that require corresponding
amendments; and

if any chronological variation of the wordings or
numbering of the articles contained in the Articles
of Association of the Company is necessary
upon application to the companies examination
and approval authority authorised by the
State Council and China Securities Regulatory
Commission for examination and approval, to
make corresponding amendments to the Articles
of Association as required by such authority and
China Securities Regulatory Commission.

By order of the Board

Launch Tech Company Limited

Liu Xin

Chairman

Shenzhen, the PRC

7 March 2011
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Notes:

A member entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting is entitled to
appoint one or more than one proxy to attend and vote on his behalf. A proxy
need not be a member of the Company.

To be valid, a form of proxy and the power of attorney or other authority, if any,
under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of such authority, must be
deposited at (i) the principal place of business in the PRC of the Company, at
9th floor, Launch Industrial Park, North of Wuhe Road, Banxuegang Longgang
District, Shenzhen, the PRC (for holders of domestic shares of the Company);
or (i) the Company’s H share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wan Chai Hong Kong (for holders of H shares of the Company), not less than
24 hours before the time for holding the meeting or appointed time of voting.

Shareholders or their proxies shall present proofs of identities when attending
the AGM.

The Registrar of members will be closed from 26 March 2011 to 26 April 2011,
both days inclusive. All transfers accompanied by relevant share certificates
must be lodged with Company’s H share registrar not later than 4:30 p.m. on
25 March 2011.

Shareholders entitled to attend the AGM are requested to deliver the
confirmation slip for attendance to (i) the principal place of business of the
Company in the PRC (for holders of domestic shares of the Company); or (i)
the Company’s H share registrar (for holders of H shares of the Company) on
or before 6 April 2011.
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DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Xin (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Jun (Chief executive officer)
Ms. Liu Ping

Non-executive Director
Ms. Liu Yong
Ms. Liu Xiaohua

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Jiang Chao

Mr. Liu Yuan

Dr. Zou Shulin

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Sun Zhongwen
Mr. Du Xuan
Mr. Wang Xi Lin

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT

Mr. Liu Chun Ming, FCCA

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Liu Chun Ming, FCCA

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Liu Jun
Dr. Zou Shulin
Mr. Liu Yuan

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Liu Xin
Dr. Zou Shulin
Mr. Liu Yuan
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Jiang Chao
Mr. Liu Yuan
Dr. Zou Shulin

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Liu Jun

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Liu Jun
Mr. Liu Chun Ming, FCCA

AUDITOR

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
25th Floor, Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong law:
Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo
26th Floor, Jardine House
1 Connaught Place

Hong Kong

As to PRC law:

ZHONG LUN LAW FIRM

12-13/F, Building 1,

China Merchants Tower,

No. 118 Jianguo Road,

Chaoyang District, Beijing 100022,
People’s Republic of China
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Suite 17-D, 17/F,

Shenzhen Development Bank Tower,

5047 Shennan Road East, Shenzhen 518001,
People’s Republic of China

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China Shenzhen Branch
Agricultural Bank of China Shenzhen Cbd Branch
Shenzhen Development Bank Co., Ltd.

of Shekou Shenzhen Branch
Gongdong Development Bank of Shenzhen Branch
Bank of Jiangsu Shenzhen Branch

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
46th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

2-8/F

Xin Yang Building

Bagua Number Four Road
Futian District

Shenzhen, the PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

Launch Industrial Park
North of Wuhe Road, Banxuegang, Longgang District, Shenzhen,
the PRC

Launch Shanghai Base
No. 661 Baian Road, Angtin Zhen, Jiading District, Shanghai,
the PRC
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

Room 1801, 18th Floor
Wing On Central Building
26 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

8196

WEBSITE

www.cnlaunch.com

BOOK CLOSE DATE FOR ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

- From 26 March 2011 to 26 April 2011, both inclusive.

- All transfers accompanied by relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s H Share registrar no later than
4:30 p.m. on 25 March 2011.
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